
 
Office of Corporate Manager Democratic & Civic Support 

Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 1JN Tel: 01392 277888 Fax: 01392 265593 www.exeter.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 

PLANNING 
 

Date: Monday 27 April 2020 
Time:  5.30 pm 
Venue:  Legislation has been passed that allows Council’s to conduct Committee meetings 
remotely. 
 
A virtual meeting of the Planning Committee is to be held on the above date via 'Skype'. 
 
Members are invited to participate in the above meeting to consider the items of business.  
 
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett, 
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 01392 265107. 
 
Membership - 
Councillors Lyons (Chair), Williams (Deputy Chair), Bialyk, Branston, Foale, Ghusain, Harvey, 
Mrs Henson, Mitchell, M, Morse, Sheldon, Sutton and Sparkes 
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
   
 Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

1    Apologies 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members. 
 

 

2    Minutes 
 

 

 To approve and agree to the future signing of the minutes of the meeting held on 
16 March 2020. 
 
 

(Pages 5 - 
28) 

3    Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item. 
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
 

 



4    LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION 
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 It is not considered that the Committee would be likely to exclude the press and 
public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should 
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed: - 
 

RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for particular item(s) on the 
grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 

Public Speaking 

Public speaking on planning applications and tree preservation orders is permitted at this 
Committee.  Only one speaker in support and one opposed to the application may speak and the 

request must be made by 10 am on the Thursday before the meeting (full details available on 
request from the Democratic Services Officer). 

 

5    Planning Application No. 20/0194/ECC - The Night Shelter, Magdalen Street, 
Exeter 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. 
 

(Pages 29 
- 38) 

6    Planning Application No. 19/0962/FUL - Land off Pulling Road, Pinhoe 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. 
 

(Pages 39 
- 56) 

7    Planning Application No. 19/1767/FUL - Quay Gardens, Monmouth Avenue, 
Topsham 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. 
 

(Pages 57 
- 70) 

8    Planning Application No. 20/0013/FUL - 37 Argyll Road, Exeter 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Service Lead City Development. 
 

(Pages 71 
- 78) 

9    List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director (BA) 
 

(Pages 79 
- 100) 

10    Appeals Report 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Director (BA)  
 

(Pages 
101 - 102) 

 
 
 
 



 
Date of Next Meeting 

 
The next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Monday 1 June 2020 at 5.30 
pm. 
 
 
Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question 
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer 
(Committees) on (01392) 265107 for further information. 

 
Follow us: 
www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil 
www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil 

 
Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265107. 

 
 

http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Monday 16 March 2020 
 
 
Present:- 
 
Councillor Lyons (Chair) 
Councillors Williams, Bialyk, Branston, Foale, Ghusain, Harvey, Mrs Henson, Mitchell, M, 
Morse, Sheldon and Sutton 
 
Apologies 
 
Councillor Sparkes 
 
Also Present 
 
Director (BA), Principal Project Manager (Development) (MD), Principal Project Manager 
(Development) (PJ) and Democratic Services Officer (Committees) (HB) 
 
24 MINUTES 

 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2020 were taken as read, 

approved and signed by the Chair as correct. 
 

25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No declarations of interest were made by Members. 
 

26 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 19/0650/OUT - THE OLD COAL YARD, 
EXMOUTH JUNCTION, MOUNT PLEASANT ROAD, EXETER 

 
 The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MD) presented the outline 

application for the construction of 400 residential dwellings (Class C3), 65 senior 
living with care units (Class C2), new public open and green spaces, access road, 
refurbishment and extension of locally listed former water tower, and associated 
works (Landscaping reserved for future consideration). 
 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) advised of two late objections from 
the Chair of the Railfuture Devon and Cornwall Branch and the Chair of SERUG 
(Salisbury to Exeter Rail Users Group) which is affiliated to Railfuture, requesting 
that the new buildings be pulled back by 25 metres from the railway line to facilitate 
any identified future railway improvements. He reported that Network Rail had 
been asked to respond and that it had confirmed that it had no objection to the 
application as it had sold the land to Eutopia Homes in 2018, and had carried out 
consultation revealing no impact on future rail projects. 
 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) presented the scheme in detail 
highlighting the following:- 
 

 provision of a mixed housing scheme comprising 465 units in total, meeting a 
variety of housing needs and to create a balanced community. The scheme 
included a five storey apartment block with 66 apartments near to Mount 
Pleasant Road, 104 four-bed townhouses, a ‘Village Green’, two blocks of 230 
Build to Rent apartments, a hard landscaped square, referred to as ‘Pump 
House Square’, a converted and extended water tower building to contain a 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 

management suite and social hub for the Build to Rent apartments and a part 
4/5 storey block containing 65 ‘senior living with care’ apartments; 

 details of vehicular access to the site from the road serving Morrisons and 
making the existing access to/from Mount Pleasant Road a pedestrian/cycle 
access point only, except for emergency vehicles; 

 low car parking to encourage more sustainable modes of travel, including 
walking, cycling and public transport, as well as reducing the dominance of cars 
in the street-scene with a total of 192 car parking spaces across the scheme as 
a whole. Over 1,000 cycle parking spaces would be provided across the 
scheme; 

 a package of affordable housing provision of 105 units; and 

 the following financial contributions:- 
 

 £1,051,421 education contribution; 

 £500,000 towards Stoke Hill Roundabout improvements; 

 £333,139 towards allotment link option two; 

 £25,000 towards Traffic Regulation Orders; and 

 £134,767 to expand Mount Pleasant Surgery.  
 
With reference to the allotment link option two, Members referred to the objections 
received including from the management committee of the Prince Charles Road 
Allotment Association against Devon County Council’s request as Local Highway 
Authority to secure funding to provide a pedestrian/cycle shared footpath link to the 
development site through the Prince Charles Road allotments site. The Principal 
Project Manager (Development) advised that the design details of this access 
would be the subject of a separate planning application, however acceptance of 
the contribution would indicate support in principle. 
 
Councillor Begley, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, spoke on the 
item. She raised the following points:- 
 

 support from the community for the development of this brownfield site but 
object to the density of the development which will accommodate some 1,500 
people as well as the scale of the buildings; 

 despite the aim to reduce the dependency on cars, such as the Co-Car 
scheme, the number of parking spaces will be inadequate to serve the total 
number of people accommodated and will lead to parking in surrounding 
streets including the car park of St. James Church which is well used by the 
wider community; 

 the height of the buildings will impact adversely on the  neighbourhood and cast 
shadows over the adjacent allotments which are important for the health and 
well-being of the community; 

 concerns that the dwellings could be occupied by students and change the 
balance of the community; 

 the Mount Pleasant Health Centre has already expanded its foot print and may 
not have the resources to staff a further expansion; 

 concerns that the properties will not be sufficiently insulated to reduce noise 
and that the play area is not adequate enough and with an area also needed 
for teenagers; and 

 a more proportionate development should be sought. 
 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) advised that the development had 
been designed in accordance with national planning policy/guidance to make 
efficient use of land in regard to density. Also, a management plan would be 
secured as part of the Section 106 legal agreement to control car parking on the 

Page 6



 

 

site and that Traffic Regulation Orders would help mitigate parking issues off site. 
He advised that the scale of the buildings was considered appropriate and a further 
condition could be added to restrict occupation by students on the site. Also, 
Condition 21 required sound insulation schemes to be submitted and details of the 
children’s play area would be covered by the application(s) for reserved matters 
details of landscaping.  
 
Mr Yarwood spoke against the application. He raised the following points:- 
 

 speaking on behalf of the Prince Charles Road Allotment Association. These 
Council owned allotments provide some 300 people direct and indirect benefits 
furthering social wellbeing. There was a current occupancy rate of 95%; 

 the County Council require a pedestrian/cycle path through the allotment site to 
link the development with Prince Charles Road which would divide the 
allotment community into two parts, separated by new gates and fences;  

 the proposal utilizes the existing track beside the Trading Hut and would mix 
cars, pedestrians and cyclists on the path travelling in different directions, a 
recipe for accidents; 

 the Trading Hut is the focal point of the allotment community acting as a sale 
and function room and the path will impact on these activities;  

 vandalism and theft, against the Trading Hut, will increase because of 
increasing public access; 

 environmentally, the site is a valuable corridor and haven for wildlife in an 
urban environment, a value which will increase as the development proceeds 
covering more land and buildings with hard surfacing; and 

 the negative impact of this short cut across the allotment site is significant and 
will outweigh any benefits of saving cyclists and pedestrians a longer journey.  

 
He responded as follows to Members’ queries:- 
 

 the alternative access site near the boundary fence of St James Church was 
discussed with County and City officers but rejected;  

 potentially three plots will be affected one of which currently houses a number 
of bee hives. Keeping of bees on this plot may become unviable if the hives are 
too close to the public; and 

 other community facilities such as rural pubs have been retained through the 
designation of “asset of community value” 

 
Mr Tomos Pierce spoke in support of the application. He raised the following 
points:- 
 

 Eutopia Homes are seeking to provide a quality development with a high level 
of amenity and providing environmental sustainability; 

 aim is to encourage sustainable modes of transport with car parking provision 
for only 50% of dwellings, car sharing opportunities, electric charging points 
and 1,000 cycle parking spaces; 

 75% of the site is green space; 

 the scheme was supported by the Design Review Panel; 

 105 affordable homes will be delivered and provision for the elderly; 

 the access point through the allotments was requested by the County Council 
and if the link is not supported the financial contribution will stand and can be 
used for other purposes; and 

 Eutopia Homes believe the development will be a benchmark for Exeter. 
 
 

Page 7



 

 

Members made the following comments:- 
 

 high density developments of this nature help meet the shortage of homes in 
the city and such developments are popular on the continent. The development 
offers a good mix of living units; 

 reduction of car parking spaces welcome, particularly given the City Council’s 
commitment to a Carbon Neutral city; 

 pedestrian links important to further encourage sustainable travel modes to 
local facilities; and 

 development of this brownfield site protects green space from development 
elsewhere in the city. 

 
One Member voiced their support for the proposal, but not the pedestrian/cycle 
shared footpath link through the Prince Charles Road allotments required by 
Devon County Council and asked the Principal Project Manager (Development) to 
clarify the implications of approving the application on provision of this link. The 
Principal Project Manager (Development) advised that the link would need to be 
the subject of a separate planning application and the Section 106 legal agreement 
could allow for the contribution to be used for the provision of offsite affordable 
housing should this link, or any other link through the allotments site, prove to be 
unfeasible to deliver.  
 
Members commented as follows: 
 

 given the objections raised by the allotment holders to the proposed access 
point a full consultation should take place with them on the County's proposal 
and subsequent planning application. Should it not proceed, the financial 
contribution set aside for the access should be utilised in accordance with the 
Principal Project Manager’s advice; and 

 the site is adjacent to an Article 4 area and to control the potential occupation 
by students an additional condition should be added to remove permitted 
development rights in respect of the change of use of Class C3 use (Dwellings) 
to Class C4 use (Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)). 

 
The recommendation was for approval subject to the provisions set out in the 
Additional Information Sheet. 
 
The recommendation was moved and seconded, with a further condition to remove 
permitted development rights allowing the change of use of Class C3 use 
(Dwellings) to Class C4 use (Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)) and for the 
Section 106 legal agreement to allow for the contribution for allotment link option 2 
to be used for the provision of offsite affordable housing should this link or any 
other link through the allotments site not be feasible to deliver. 
 
RESOLVED that subject to:- 
 

a) the Service Lead City Development being granted delegated authority to 
determine the updated highways drawings/technical information requested 
by the Local Highway Authority in its consultation response dated 1 
November 2019 and revised drawings showing an additional ‘accessible for 
all’ path traversing the wooded slope, subject also to prior consultation with 
the Chair and the Local Highway Authority over these matters; and 

 
b) the completion of a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 securing the following package of affordable housing 
and listed contributions:- 

Page 8



 

 

 

 33 affordable units from Block A (that is half the building) and 15 
affordable townhouses (pepper potted) (equating to 28% of 170 units for 
sale) - 70% of each to be social rented in accordance with Policy CP7 
and three socially rented flats to be wheelchair accessible in 
accordance with Part M4(3)(2)(b) of the Building Regulations; 

 57 affordable Private Rent units (25% of 230 Build to Rent units) in 
Blocks B and C; affordable private rent units to be at least 20% less 
than the private market rent (inclusive of service charges); 

 £1,051,421 education contribution (including £759,854 secondary 
contribution towards the new school at South West Exeter); 

 £500,000 towards Stoke Hill Roundabout improvements; 

 £333,139 towards allotment link option two or offsite affordable housing 
should this link or any other link not be feasible to deliver; 

 £25,000 towards Traffic Regulation Orders; 

 £134,767 to expand the Mount Pleasant Health Centre; and 

 CIL liability on 295 open market sale/buy to rent units (with CIL liability 
not applying to Block D or affordable units). 

 
and restricting the use of Block D to Use Class C2 only, as well as securing 
a management plan with respect to the Build to Rent units (Blocks B and C) 
and car parking within the development;  

 
planning permission for the construction of 400 residential dwellings (Class C3), 65 
senior living with care units (Class C2), new public open and green spaces, access 
road, refurbishment and extension of locally listed former water tower, and 
associated works (Landscaping reserved for future consideration) be APPROVED, 
subject also to the following conditions, a new condition 41 in respect of permitted 
development rights and to the Service Lead City Development being granted 
delegated authority to add/amend conditions if necessary following the completion 
of a) above: - 
 
1. Reserved Matters 
 

Details of the landscaping (hereinafter called "the reserved matter") shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
any development begins and the development shall be carried out as 
approved. 
Reason: To safeguard the rights of the local planning authority in respect of 
the reserved matter. This information is required before development 
commences to ensure that the development is properly planned with 
appropriate regard to the reserved matter. 

 
2. Standard Time Limits – Outline Planning Permission 
 

Application for the approval of the reserved matters relating to the 
development hereby permitted in outline shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission, and the development hereby permitted in outline shall be 
begun before the expiration of five years from the date of this permission or 
before the expiration of two years from the date of the approval of the last 
of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.  
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 - 93 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 

Page 9



 

 

3. Approved Plans and Documents 
 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and documents listed below, unless 
modified by the other conditions of this consent: 

 
(To be confirmed following completion of a) above) 

 
Reason: To ensure the development is constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans. 

 
4. Boundary with Network Rail 
 

The reserved matter details shall include a fence adjacent to Network Rail’s 
boundary and provisions for its maintenance and renewal in accordance 
with the comments submitted by Network Rail on 23.07.2019. The fence 
shall be provided prior to the occupation of any part of the development and 
maintained/renewed in accordance with the approved details. Network 
Rail’s existing fencing / wall must not be removed or damaged and at no 
point either during construction or after works are completed on site should 
the foundations of the fencing or wall or any embankment therein be 
damaged, undermined or compromised in any way. 
Reason: In the interests of public safety, the safe operation of the railway 
and the protection of Network Rail’s adjoining land. 

 
Pre-commencement Details 

 
5. Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
 

No development (including demolition and ground works) or vegetation 
clearance works shall take place until a Construction and Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall be prepared in 
accordance with specifications in clause 10.2 of BS 42020:2013 (or any 
superseding British Standard) and shall include the following: 

 
a)  Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 
b)  Identification of “biodiversity protection zones”. 
c)  Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working 

practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction. 
d)  The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to 

biodiversity features. This includes the use of protective fences, 
exclusion barriers and warning signs. 

e)  The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be 
present on site to monitor works to ensure compliance with the 
CEMP, and the actions that will be undertaken. 

f)  Responsible persons and lines of communication. 
g)  The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works 

(ECoW) or similarly competent person. 
 

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the 
construction period of the development strictly in accordance with the 
approved details. 
Reason: To protect the biodiversity of the site including protected species, 
taking into account the recommendations of the submitted protected 
species reports. A CEMP is required before any development begins to 

Page 10



 

 

ensure that appropriate mitigation measures are identified and carried out 
during the construction phase.  

 
6. Precautionary Working Method Statement for Reptiles 
 

The Precautionary Working Method Statement for Reptiles (PWMSR) 
appended to the submitted Reptile Report (Wardell Armstrong, July 2019) 
shall be implemented in full. Prior to the commencement of the 
development hereby permitted, the details of the suitably qualified ecologist 
or Ecological Clerk of Works who will be responsible for implementing the 
PWMSR shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority together with a timetable for the implementation of the 
PWMSR. The approved ecologist shall inform the Local Planning Authority 
in writing the results of each stage of the timetabled PWMSR, including any 
further measures carried out to protect reptiles. 
Reason: To ensure that reptiles on the site will not be harmed by 
vegetation clearance works or other construction activities. These details 
are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that the 
Precautionary Working Method Statement for Reptiles is carried out 
appropriately to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
7. Invasive Non-Native Species Mitigation 
 

The mitigation measures in section 4.4 of the submitted Invasive Non-
Native Species Report (Wardell Armstrong, August 2019) for Three-
Cornered Garlic, Montbretia and Cotoneaster Species shall be 
implemented in full. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby 
permitted, the details of the suitably qualified ecologist or Ecological Clerk 
of Works who will be responsible for implementing the mitigation shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
together with a timetable for the implementation of the mitigation. The 
approved ecologist shall inform the Local Planning Authority in writing the 
results of each stage of the timetabled mitigation, including any further 
measures carried out to prevent the spread of these plant species. 
Reason: To prevent the spread of the invasive non-native species on the 
site. These details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure 
that the mitigation is carried out appropriately to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
8. Contaminated Land 
 

No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site 
has taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any 
contamination of the land and the results, together with any remedial works 
necessary, have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The building(s) shall not be occupied until the approved remedial works 
have been implemented and a remediation statement submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority detailing what contamination has been found and 
how it has been dealt with together with confirmation that no unacceptable 
risks remain. 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the occupants of the buildings 
hereby approved. This information is required before development 
commences to ensure that any remedial works are properly considered and 
addressed at the appropriate stage. 

 
 

Page 11



 

 

9. Detailed Permanent Surface Water Drainage Scheme 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the 
detailed design of the proposed permanent surface water drainage 
management system has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the 
Lead Local Flood Authority and Network Rail. The design of this permanent 
surface water drainage management system will be in accordance with the 
principles of sustainable drainage systems, and those set out in the 
submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy Report (AECOM, 
April 2019) (Revision 04, 16.10.2019). No part of the development shall be 
occupied until the surface water management scheme serving that part of 
the development has been provided in accordance with the approved 
details and the drainage infrastructure shall be retained and maintained for 
the lifetime of the development. 
Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is 
managed in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage 
systems. A detailed permanent surface water drainage management plan is 
required prior to commencement of any works to demonstrate that the plan 
fits within the site layout, manages surface water safely and does not 
increase flood risk downstream.  
(Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance.) 

 
10. Surface Water Drainage Management System (Construction) 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the 
detailed design of the proposed surface water drainage management 
system which will serve the development site for the full period of its 
construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead 
Local Flood Authority and Network Rail. This temporary surface water 
drainage management system must satisfactorily address both the rates 
and volumes, and quality, of the surface water runoff from the construction 
site. The approved surface water drainage management system shall be 
implemented and maintained throughout the construction period. 
Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is 
appropriately managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water 
quality issues, to the surrounding area. These details are required pre-
commencement as specified to ensure that surface water can be managed 
suitably without increasing flood risk downstream, negatively affecting water 
quality downstream or negatively impacting on surrounding areas and 
infrastructure. 
Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance. 

 
11. Exceedance Pathways and Overland Flow Routes 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until 
details of the exceedance pathways and overland flow routes across the 
site in the event of rainfall in excess of the design standard of the proposed 
surface water drainage management system have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority and Network Rail. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason: To ensure that the surface water runoff generated from rainfall 
events in excess of the design standard of the proposed surface water 

Page 12



 

 

drainage management system is safely managed. These details are 
required pre-commencement as specified to ensure the development is 
designed and constructed safely with respect to the exceedance pathways 
and overland flow routes. 

 
12. Adoption and Maintenance Arrangements 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the 
full details of the adoption and maintenance arrangements for the proposed 
permanent surface water drainage management system have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in 
consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
The permanent surface water drainage management system shall be 
adopted and maintained as approved. 
Reason: To ensure that the development’s permanent surface water 
drainage management systems will remain fully operational throughout the 
lifetime of the development. These details need to be submitted prior to 
commencement of any works to ensure that suitable plans are in place for 
the maintenance of the permanent surface water drainage management 
plan, for the reason above. 

 
13. Detailed Survey of Culvert 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a 
detailed survey of the culvert within the site has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The survey shall 
confirm the location, levels, diameter and condition of the culvert.  
Reason: To determine whether the historical culvert is a feasible receptor 
for the disposal of surface water from the site. These details are required 
pre-commencement as specified to inform the design of the permanent 
surface water drainage system and to ensure that surface water can be 
safely managed at the site without increasing the risk of surface water 
flooding either on the site or downstream. 

 
14. Capacity Assessment of Culvert 
 

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a 
capacity assessment of the culvert within the site has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The capacity 
assessment shall confirm the contributing area draining to the culvert. 
Reason: To determine whether the historical culvert is a feasible receptor 
for the disposal of surface water from the site. These details are required 
pre-commencement as specified to inform the design of the permanent 
surface water drainage system and to ensure that surface water can be 
safely managed at the site without increasing the risk of surface water 
flooding either on the site or downstream. 

 
15. Energy 1 
 

Any individual dwelling hereby approved shall achieve Code for Sustainable 
Homes (CSH) Level 4 in respect of Energy and CO2 Emissions including a 
44% CO2 emissions rate reduction from Building Regulations Part L 2006 
as a minimum, in accordance with the requirements of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes 2006, the Code for Sustainable Homes Technical 

Page 13



 

 

Guide November 2010 and the Code Addendum May 2014 (or such 
equivalent standard that maybe approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority) and Exeter Core Strategy Policy CP15.  
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development. 

 
16. Energy 2 
 

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the 
developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority an assessment to 
show how the requirements of condition 15 above will be met.  The 
measures set out in that assessment shall subsequently be implemented 
on site in relation to each individual dwelling prior to the first occupation of 
that dwelling. 
Reason: To ensure that the proposal complies with Policy CP15 of 
Council's Adopted Core Strategy and in the interests of delivering 
sustainable development. This information is required before development 
commences to ensure that a sustainable design is finalised before any 
irreversible element of the construction process takes place. 

 
17. Phasing Plan 
 

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a phasing 
plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved phasing plan. 
Reason: To ensure all parts of the development, including infrastructure, 
are delivered in an appropriate order. A phasing plan is required before 
development begins to confirm the order the development will be carried 
out. 

 
Pre-commencement Details – Phases  
 
18. Construction Method Statement 
 

Prior to the commencement of development in any approved phase 
(including ground works and vegetation clearance works), a Construction 
Method Statement for that phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statements shall provide for: 

 
a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the phase during the construction 

period. 
b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors. 
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials. 
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the development 

within the phase. 
e) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate.  
f) Wheel washing facilities. 
g) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction.  
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works. 
i) Measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and 

machinery. 
j) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to 

Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. 

 
The approved Statements shall be strictly adhered to throughout the 

Page 14



 

 

construction period of the phase of the development. 
Reason: To ensure that the construction works are carried out in an 
appropriate manner to minimise the impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
uses and in the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users. 
These details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that 
building operations are carried out in an appropriate manner. 

 
19. Waste Audit Statements 
 

Prior to the commencement of development in any approved phase, a 
Waste Audit Statement for that phase shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The statements shall include all 
information outlined in the waste audit statement template appended to 
Devon County Council’s Waste Management and Infrastructure 
Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved statements. 
Reason: To minimise the amount of waste produced and promote 
sustainable methods of waste management in accordance with Policy W4 
of the Devon Waste Plan and the Waste Management and Infrastructure 
Supplementary Planning Document. These details are required pre-
commencement as specified to ensure that waste generated during 
construction is managed sustainably. 

 
20. Tree Protection 1 – Service Runs 
 

Prior to the commencement of development in any approved phase, plans 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority showing the routeing of underground apparatus within the phase.  
Reason: In the interests of protecting the trees to be retained on and 
around the site. These plans are required before development commences 
to ensure that these aspects of the development do not adversely affect the 
health of the trees. 

 
21. Sound Insulation Schemes 
 

Prior to the commencement of development in any approved phase, a 
scheme for sound insulation to protect occupants of the phase from 
external noise shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved schemes shall be implemented in full 
prior to occupation of the phases and shall be maintained as agreed 
thereafter. 
Reason: To protect the residents from noise caused by neighbouring land 
uses taking into account the submitted Noise and Vibration Report 
(AECOM, April 2019) (Revision 2, 29.03.2019). These details are required 
pre-commencement as specified to ensure that noise mitigation measures 
are included in the development. 

 
Pre-commencement Works 
 
22. Tree Protection 2 – Tree Protective Fencing 
 

No materials shall be brought onto the site or any development 
commenced, until the tree protective fencing indicated on drawing numbers 
TH/A279/0219 Rev 1.0 (‘Tree Protection Plan (West)’ and ‘Tree Protection 
Plan (East)’) within the submitted British Standard 5837:2012 Arboricultural 
Survey (Tom Hurley, 12th April 2019) has been installed and inspected by 

Page 15



 

 

an officer of the Local Planning Authority. The developer shall maintain the 
fencing to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority until all 
development the subject of this permission is completed. The level of the 
land within the fenced areas shall not be altered without the prior written 
consent of the Local Planning Authority. No materials shall be stored within 
the fenced areas, nor shall trenches for service runs or any other 
excavations take place within the fenced areas except by written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such permission is 
granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered equipment. 
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees to be retained during the 
carrying out of the development. These measures are required pre-
commencement as specified to ensure that the health of the trees to be 
retained are not harmed by building operations. 

 
Pre-tree and Vegetation Clearance Works 
 
23. Bird Nesting Season 
 

No tree works or felling, cutting or removal of hedgerows or other 
vegetation clearance works shall be carried out on the site during the bird 
nesting season from March to September, inclusive. If this period cannot be 
avoided, these works shall not be carried out unless they are overseen by a 
suitably qualified ecologist and the reasons why have previously been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
including the date of the intended works and the name and contact details 
of the ecologist. If nesting birds are found or suspected during the works, 
the works shall cease until the ecologist is satisfied that the nest sites have 
become inactive. 
Reason: To protect nesting birds in accordance with saved Policy LS4 of 
the Exeter Local Plan First Review and paragraph 175 of the NPPF. 

 
During Construction 
 
24. Tree Protection 3 – Arboricultural Method Statement  
 

The Arboricultural Method Statement and Arboricultural Method Statement 
Plan (drawing number TH/A279/0219 Rev 1.0) within the submitted British 
Standard 5837:2012 Arboricultural Survey (Tom Hurley, 12th April 2019) 
shall be implemented in full and strictly adhered to during the construction 
phase of the development. 
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees to be retained during the 
carrying out of the development. 

 
25. Unsuspected Contamination 
 

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to 
be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until 
the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local 
Planning Authority for an amended investigation and risk assessment and, 
where necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan detailing how 
this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with.  

 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
strategy and verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the 
permitted development, a verification report demonstrating completion of 

Page 16



 

 

the works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the 
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This 
condition is required to ensure that any unexpected contamination that is 
uncovered during remediation or other site works is dealt with appropriately. 

 
26. Ecological Mitigation 
 

Overnight all excavated holes associated with the construction of the 
development shall be covered and all trenches shall have sloping planks 
placed in them. 
Reason: To avoid trapping animals and to provide a means for escape. 

 
Pre-Specific Works 
 
27. Materials 
 

Prior to the construction of any buildings within an approved phase of the 
development (not including the foundations), samples and/or product 
specification sheets, including confirmation of colour, of the external facing 
materials and roof materials of the buildings within the phase shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
buildings shall be constructed in accordance with the approved materials. 
Reason: In the interests of good design and the character of the area, in 
accordance with Policy CP17 of the Core Strategy, saved Policy DG1 of the 
Exeter Local Plan First Review and paragraph 127 of the NPPF. 

 
28. Nesting and Roosting Boxes 
 

Prior to the construction of any buildings within an approved phase of the 
development (not including the foundations), details of the provision for 
nesting birds and roosting bats in the built fabric of the buildings within the 
phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details shall be fully implemented as part of the 
development and retained thereafter. 
Reason: To enhance biodiversity on the site in accordance with the 
Residential Design Guide SPD (Appendix 2) and paragraph 175 of the 
NPPF. 

 
29. Biodiverse Roofs 
 

Prior to the construction of any buildings indicated as having a biodiverse 
roof on page 51 of the Design and Access Statement (Darling Associates 
Architects, April 2019), detailed plans and maintenance arrangements of 
the biodiverse roofs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The biodiverse roofs shall be constructed and 
maintained as approved. 
Reason: In the interests of good design and biodiversity. 

 
30. External Lighting 
 

No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of the 
lighting have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Network Rail, (including 
location, type and specification). The details shall demonstrate how the 

Page 17



 

 

lighting has been designed to minimise impacts on local amenity, wildlife 
and the operation of the railway (including isoline drawings of lighting levels 
and mitigation if necessary). The lighting shall be installed in accordance 
with the approved details.  
Reason: To ensure lighting is well designed to protect the amenities of the 
area, wildlife and the operation of the railway. 

 
31. Vehicle Barriers 
 

The vehicle barriers shown on the approved plans shall not be installed 
until design details of the barriers have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: In the interests of good design and the character of the area, in 
accordance with Policy CP17 of the Core Strategy, saved Policy DG1 of the 
Exeter Local Plan First Review and paragraph 127 of the NPPF. 

 
Pre-occupation 
 
32. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) 
 

Prior to the first occupation or use of the development hereby permitted, a 
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The content of the 
LEMP shall be prepared in accordance with the specifications in clause 
11.1 of BS 42020:2013 (or any superseding British Standard) and shall 
include the following: 

 
a) Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
b) Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence 

management. 
c) Aims and objectives of management. 
d) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives. 
e) Prescriptions for management actions. 
f) Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable 

of being rolled forward over a five year period). 
g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the 

plan. 
h) On-going monitoring and remedial measures for biodiversity features 

included in the LEMP. 
 

The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) 
by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be secured by the 
developer with the management body(s) responsible for its delivery. All 
post-construction site management shall be undertaken in accordance with 
the LEMP. 
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity and good design in accordance with 
Policy CP16 of the Core Strategy, saved Policies LS4 and DG1 of the Local 
Plan First Review and paragraphs 127 and 175 of the NPPF. Also taking 
into account the operational mitigation recommended in the submitted 
protected species surveys. 

 
33. Lighting Design Strategy – Dark Areas 
 

Prior to the first occupation or use of the development hereby permitted, a 
Lighting Design Strategy to maintain “dark areas” on the site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 

Page 18



 

 

Strategy shall include: 
 
a) A map showing the “dark areas” that will be maintained on site. 
b) An evidence based assessment of light levels of the proposed 

development, including buildings, vehicle headlamps and street lighting, 
comprising a written report and accompanying drawings of the site with 
the levels of predicted illuminance and light spill in and adjacent to the 
“dark areas” shown by appropriate isolines. 

c) Evidence to demonstrate that a light spill no higher than 0.5 lux will be 
achieved within the “dark areas”. 

d) Where c) is achieved either fully or in part through landscaping, details 
of the landscaping and its management to ensure it will maintain the 
“dark areas” in perpetuity. These details shall be incorporated into the 
details of landscaping and Landscape and Ecological Management Plan 
(LEMP) where applicable. 

 
The Lighting Design Strategy shall be implemented and maintained as   

approved. 
Reason: To prevent disturbance to bats in accordance with the 
recommendations of the submitted Bat Report (Wardell Armstrong, October 
2019). 

 
34. Travel Plan 1 
 

No part of the development shall be occupied (not including the ‘senior 
living with care’ apartment block) until a Travel Plan (including 
recommendations and arrangements for monitoring and review) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in 
consultation with the Local Highway Authority. Thereafter the 
recommendations of the Travel Plan shall be implemented, monitored and 
reviewed in accordance with the approved document, or any amended 
document subsequently approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason: To encourage travel by sustainable means, in accordance with 
saved Policy T3 of the Local Plan First Review and the Sustainable 
Transport SPD. 

 
35. Travel Plan 2 
 

No part of the ‘senior living with care’ apartment block shall be occupied 
until a Travel Plan (including recommendations and arrangements for 
monitoring and review) for this element of the scheme has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation 
with the Local Highway Authority. Thereafter the recommendations of the 
Travel Plan shall be implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance 
with the approved document, or any amended document subsequently 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To encourage travel by sustainable means, in accordance with 
saved Policy T3 of the Local Plan First Review and the Sustainable 
Transport SPD. 

 
Pre-occupation – Phases  
 
36. Cycle Parking 
 

Prior to the first occupation or use of the buildings in any approved phase, 

Page 19



 

 

the cycle parking within that phase, as shown on the approved drawings 
and within the Design and Access Statement (Darling Associates 
Architects, April 2019), shall be provided in accordance with details 
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason: To encourage cycling as a sustainable mode of transport in 
accordance with saved Policy T3 of the Exeter Local Plan First Review and 
the Sustainable Transport Supplementary Planning Document (March 
2013). 

 
37. Car Parking 
 

The buildings in any approved phase shall not be occupied until all of the 
car parking spaces and access thereto within the phase have been 
provided and made available for use. The car parking spaces shall be kept 
permanently available for parking and access purposes thereafter.  
Reason: To ensure that adequate off-street parking and access thereto is 
provided and kept permanently available for use in the interests of highway 
safety and to protect the amenities of the neighbourhood. 

 
Post Occupancy 
 
38. Plant Noise Levels 
 

Mechanical building services plant shall not exceed the levels stated in 
Table 6.4 of the submitted Noise and Vibration Report (AECOM, April 2019) 
(Revision 2, 29.03.2019). Plant noise levels shall be measured as a rating 
noise level in accordance with BS4142:2014. 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the locality. 

 
39. Build to Rent Facilities 
 

The facilities shown on page 110 of the submitted Design and Access 
Statement (Darling Associates Architects, April 2019) shall be used as 
ancillary facilities for the residential development within the site only. 
Reason: To ensure that the development reflects the complexion of the 
proposals upon which the application was assessed. 

 
40. Removal of PD Rights 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or 
any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), no development 
of the types described in the following Classes of Schedule 2 shall be 
undertaken without the express consent in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority other than those expressly authorised by this permission: 

 
Part 1, Class A – enlargement, improvement or other alteration of a 
dwellinghouse 
Part 1, Class B – additions etc. to the roof of a dwellinghouse 
Part 1, Class C – other alterations to the roof of a dwellinghouse 
Part 1, Class D – porches  
Part 1, Class E – buildings etc. incidental to the enjoyment of a 
dwellinghouse 
Part 1, Class F – hard surfaces incidental to the enjoyment of a 
dwellinghouse 

Page 20



 

 

Part 1, Class G – chimneys, flues etc. on a dwellinghouse 
Part 1, Class H – microwave antenna on a dwellinghouse 

 
Reason: To ensure minimum garden sizes are maintained in accordance 
with chapter 7 of the Residential Design SPD and to maintain the principles 
of the Design and Access Statement (Darling Associates Architects, April 
2019) in the interests of good design in accordance with Policy CP17 of the 
Core Strategy, saved Policy DG1 of the Exeter Local Plan First Review and 
paragraph 127 of the NPPF. 

 
 
41           Removal of PD Rights 2 
 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country 
Planning  (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or 
any Order revoking, re-enacting or modifying that Order), no development 
of the type described in the following Class of Schedule 2 shall be 
undertaken without the express consent in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority other than those expressly authorised by this permission: 

 

 Part 3, Class L – small HMOs to dwellinghouses and vice versa 
 

Reason: To control the provision of houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) 
for student housing given the proximity of the site to the University of 
Exeter, in order to provide a mixed community and meet housing needs in 
accordance with Policy CP5 of the Core Strategy. 

 
 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 7.00 pm for ten minutes for the Senior Management 
Board to update Members on the latest position in respect of the Coronavirus 
crisis.  

 
 
 
 

27 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 19/1676- FUL - ST. ANDREWS YARD, WILLEYS 
AVENUE, EXETER 

 
 Councillor Bialyk was not present in the meeting for the consideration of this item. 

 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (PJ) presented the application for 
the demolition of existing single storey business premises and construction of a 
new nine dwelling residential apartment block 
 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) stated that the revised scheme was 
essentially similar to that previously submitted. It largely addressed only one of the 
two previous reasons for refusal agreed at the July meeting of this Committee, that 
is, the scheme’s poor design in relation to the character of the area. The other 
reason for refusal, namely the scale, massing and height of the building remained 
unchanged. The Principal Project Manager (Development) considered that the 
intention to now pursue a more traditional elevational approach was more 
appropriate. Consequently, it was considered that the applicant had addressed the 

Page 21



 

 

second reason for refusal relating to design. The Principal Project Manager 
(Development) stated that a planning judgement was necessary to decide whether 
the changes made to the design of the building outweighed the unchanged height, 
scale and massing of the proposed building. The recommendation was for 
approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the report. 
 
The Principal Project Manager (Development) referred to an email objecting to the 
development received from Councillor D. Moore including the following points:-. 
 

 revised development only addresses one of the reasons for refusal. The height 
and mass of the development remains out of keeping on both the plot and in its 
location in Willey’s Avenue. The whole three story block adjacent to the terrace 
row is oppressive in its design and mass;  

 the design and access statement shows the building in relation to other 
properties, cited as apartments opposite, but these are at the end of Willey's 
Avenue, not adjacent to the property; and 

 as parking is on site and in a sustainable location, if permission is granted a 
condition should be added that no on street parking provision be allowed in 
order to reduce the potential for conflict for car parking on street spaces. 
  

Ms Kidney spoke against the application. She raised the following points:- 
 

 the community does not object to the development of the site but to the 
current plans. The revised scheme does not address the majority of the 
previous concerns, particularly size, scale and massing. It is an oppressive, 
domineering development; 

 the design has been altered but not the bulk of this building and it feels like 
the developer is trying to shoehorn as many people as possible; 

 the building still does not fit into the existing street scene. The mass and 
scale remain excessive, overbearing and visually intrusive. It does not 
relate well to the adjacent terraced properties and has a poor relationship 
with the existing neighbourhood; 

 this development has a mansard roof which is out of character as most 
buildings in the local area have a pitched roof; 

 the scale and massing of this design will have a huge impact on existing 
neighbours on three streets and have a detrimental effect on the amenities 
currently enjoyed and there will be a significant impact upon the sunlight in 
homes and gardens; and 

 although the developer stated that he wished to consult with neighbours 
and was committed to the local community he had not made any 
subsequent contact, nor taken up a request from Councillor D. Moore for a 
community meeting. 
 

Mr Graham Chilvers spoke in support of the application. He raised the following 
points:- 
 

 there were three/four storey residential buildings in St Thomas as well as 
Willeys Avenue itself and, as such, the development was not out of 
character with the area; 

 a development in New North Road had been approved even though it was 
a modern building set within a Grade II Listed Georgian Terrace and did not 
therefore relate to the context of the neighbourhood; 

 no off street parking proposed as part of the development;  

 four separate sets of drawings had been prepared responding to issues 
raised; and 

Page 22



 

 

 have responded in great detail to the issues raised by the Councillor. 

 
A number of Members noted that there had been no change to the scale and 
massing, that the proposal remained oppressive and it was also suggested that an 
improved quality in design was required to better reflect the setting of the 
neighbourhood. One Member requested the future proofing of arrangements for bin 
storage. 
 
The recommendation was moved and seconded. 
 
RESOLVED that the application for the demolition of existing single storey 
business premises and construction of a new nine dwelling residential apartment 
block be REFUSED as the proposal would be contrary to Paragraph 127 (a, b, c, 
and d) and Paragraph 130 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), 
objective 9 and Policy CP17 of the Exeter Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy (2012), Policies DG1 (b, g, and h) of the Exeter Local Plan First Review 
(2005) and the Residential Design Guide SPD (2010) because:- 
  
1)  by virtue of its scale and massing this apartment block would be dominant 

and visually intrusive within the streetscene, unsympathetic with and 
detrimental to the character of this established residential area; and  

 
2)  the proposed development represents poor design that would fail to take 

the opportunities to improve the character or quality of the area, would not 
contribute positively to the visual richness and amenity of the townscape 
and would not raise the quality of urban living through excellence in design. 

 
28 PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 19/0733/FUL  - 7-9 AND 10 BLACKBOY ROAD, 

EXETER 
 

 The Principal Project Manager (Development) (PJ) presented the application for 
the retention of the Sorry Head public house and demolition of the vehicular 
servicing centre and redevelopment with a four storey building comprising of a 
ground floor retail unit (Class A1), purpose built student accommodation 
development (71 bed-spaces) above, one wardens’s flat and associated private 
amenity space, secure cycle storage and landscaping. 
  
The Principal Project Manager (Development) advised that the scheme considered 
at the previous meeting of this Committee had been amended by:- 
 

 removing the second floor cluster flat to the rear and replacing with a mansard 
roof setting the highest point 1.3 metres in from the boundary; 

 reducing the number of bed-spaces from 72 to 71; 

 changing the materials of one of the new units at the front from render to brick 
with dormer windows reduced in size and plinths added to the base of the walls 
and cappings added to the top; and 

 a commitment, following comments of the Fire and Rescue Service, to provide 
a dry riser in the main staircase.  

 
Responding to Members’ queries he advised that:- 
  

 it would be for the applicant to discuss with a neighbour the issue of a boundary 
wall in respect of the part demolition of a building which was not a planning 
matter; 

 the student management plan could make reference to ensure that the light 
from a stairway would not become intrusive to neighbours; and 

Page 23



 

 

 the applicant had undertaken to provide cycle parking within a secure courtyard 
and that some cycle parking spaces would also be provided outside the retail 
unit.  

 
The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the 
report. 
 
The recommendation was moved and seconded. 
 
RESOLVED that, subject to a financial contribution of £3,000 towards a Traffic 
Regulation Order, planning permission for the retention of the Sorry Head public 
house and demolition of the vehicular servicing centre and re-development with a 
four storey building comprising of a ground floor retail unit (Class A1), purpose built 
student accommodation development (71 bed-spaces) above, one warden’s flat 
and associated private amenity space, secure cycle storage and landscaping be 
APPROVED, subject also to the following conditions:- 
 
1.  The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 

than the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this 
permission is granted. 
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91-92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than 

in accordance with the submitted details received by on 17 January 2020 
(dwg no. AS18.64 L.02.00 rev 05 & L.02.01 rev 05) and 26 February 2020 
(dwg nos. AS18.64 L.01.02 rev 05; L.02.02 rev 06; L.02.03 rev 06; L.02.04 
rev 06; L.04.00 rev 05; L.04.02 rev 05; L.04.01 rev 06; L.03.03 rev 02 & 
L.03.02 rev 02) the Local Planning Authority on as modified by other 
conditions of this consent. 
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings. 

 
3.  Samples of the materials it is intended to use externally in the construction 

of the development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No 
external finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority 
has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials 
used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the 
approved samples in all respects. 
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity 
requirements of the area.  

 
4.  No development (including ground works and demolition) shall take place 

until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for: 
a) the site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction 
phase. 
b) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors. 
c) the areas for loading and unloading plant and materials. 
d) storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development. 
e) the erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate. 
f) wheel washing facilities. 
g) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction. 
h) no burning on site during construction or site preparation works. 
i) measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and 
machinery. 

Page 24



 

 

j) construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to 
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. 
k) no driven piling without prior consent from the LPA. 
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the 
construction period of the development. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, this condition allows for the submission and 
approval of separate Construction Method Statements for the demolition 
and construction phases of the proposed development, and for 
development to proceed on each phase following the approval of the 
Construction Method Statement for that phase.     
Reason: In the interests of the occupants of nearby buildings. 

 
5.  No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site 

has taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any 
contamination of the land and the results, together with any remedial works 
necessary, have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The buildings shall not be occupied until the approved remedial works have 
been implemented and a remediation statement submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority detailing what contamination has been found and how it 
has been dealt with such as to provide reasonable confirmation that no 
unacceptable risks remain. 
Reason: In the interests of amenity of the occupants of the buildings 
hereby approved. 

 
6.  Pre commencement condition - Prior to commencement of the development 

a noise assessment shall be undertaken and submitted for approval in 
writing by the LPA. This assessment shall consider the impact of noise from 
the development on local receptors and shall include noise from plant and 
equipment as well as future site users. If, following the above assessment, 
the LPA concludes that noise mitigation measures are required, the 
applicant shall then submit a scheme of works to ensure that the 
development does not have a significant negative impact on local amenity. 
These measures shall be agreed in writing by the LPA and shall be 
implemented prior to and throughout the occupation of the development. 
Reason: Insufficient information has been submitted with the application 
and in the interests of residential amenity. 

 
7.  Pre-commencement condition - No development related works shall take 

place within the site until a written scheme of archaeological work has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
scheme shall include both on-site work, and subsequent assessment, such 
as the analysis, publication, and archiving of the results, together with a 
timetable for completion of each element. All works shall be carried out and 
completed in accordance with the approved scheme, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To ensure the appropriate identification, recording and publication 
of archaeological and historic remains affected by the development. 

 
8.  Pre-commencement condition: Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority the building hereby approved shall achieve a 
BREEAM ‘Excellent’ standard as a minimum. Prior to commencement of 
the development, excluding demolition, any works required to facilitate 
demolition and ground re-profiling work, the developer shall submit to the 
Local Planning Authority a BREEAM design stage assessment report to be 

Page 25



 

 

prepared by a licensed BREEAM assessor which shall set out the evidence 
to confirm that the minimum standard can be achieved. The building must 
be completed fully in accordance with any approval given. A BREEAM post-
completion report of the building is to be carried out by a licensed BREEAM 
assessor within twelve months of substantial completion of the building and 
shall set out the BREEAM score achieved by the building and the 
equivalent BREEAM standard to which such score relates. 
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To ensure that the proposal 
complies with Policy CP15 of Council's Adopted Core Strategy and in the 
interests of delivering sustainable development. The design stage 
assessment must be completed prior to commencement of development 
because the findings may influence the design for all stages of construction. 

 
9.  Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted a student 

management scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The scheme shall include securing student only 
occupation; employment of a warden/student liaison representative to 
manage student behaviour; on-site CCTV management, lighting and 
restriction of student parking within the area. The plan shall be implemented 
in accordance with the agreed details thereafter unless other agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority.  
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residents and the character 
and appearance of the area. 

 
10.  Prior to occupation of the building hereby approved place until details of 

provision for nesting swifts has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the RSPB. Upon written 
approval of the details, the scheme shall be fully implemented as part of the 
development and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of preservation and enhancement of biodiversity in 
the locality. 

 
11.  No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its 

intended use until the seven cycle spaces, as indicated on Drawing No. 
19091 - 010 Rev C have been provided in accordance with details and 
specifications that shall previously have been submitted to, agreed and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport 

 
12.  Prior to commencement of the development, details shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority of secure cycle parking provision for the 
student element of the development. Development shall not be commenced 
until such details have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and prior to occupation the cycle parking shall be provided in 
accordance with the submitted details.   

 Reason: To provide adequate facilities for sustainable transport 
 
13.  No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its 

intended use until details of the parallel space within the existing car park 
as indicated on Drawing No. 19091 - 010 Rev C have been approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be 
occupied until the parallel space lining have been provided, surfaced and 
marked out in accordance with the approved plans retained for those 
purposes at all times. 

 Reason:  To provide a safe and suitable access in accordance with 
Paragraph 108 of the NPPF 

Page 26



 

 

 
14.  Management Plan/Travel Plan measures including the provision of 

sustainable transport welcome packs and details of the arrangements of 
how student pick up/drop off will be managed, shall be provided in 
accordance with details agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and Local Highway Authority in advance of occupation of the development. 

 Reason: To promote the use of sustainable transport modes and in the 
interest of highway safety, in accordance with paragraphs 111 of the 
NPPF. 

 

15.  Notwithstanding condition no 2, no work shall commence on site under this 
permission until full details of the following have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the following shall 
thereafter be provided in accordance with such details: 
a) natural slate and timber windows within the public house front elevation; 
d) onsite external lighting; 
e) boundaries treatment within rear courtyard; 
f) boundary treatment retail and student refuse area; 
g) refuse storage facility on Spinning Path; 
h) recording and retention of internal architectural features within the public 
house; 
i) refuse management plan for the retail unit. 

 Reason: Insufficient information has been submitted with the application 
and in the interests of visual amenity 

 
16.  Prior to commencement of the development, details shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority of programme of works including where 
necessary structural reports for the demolition and construction process in 
respect of the Sorry Head public house which shall be implemented and 
adhered to all times unless otherwise agreed in writing.  

 Reason: To protect the structural element of the building identified for 
retention. 

 
Informatives 
 
1)  In accordance with paragraphs 38 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with 
the Applicant and has negotiated amendments to the application to enable 
the grant of planning permission. 

 
2)  The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL 

(Community Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following 
commencement of development.  A Liability Notice is attached to this 
permission. 

 
It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable development is 
commenced before the Local Authority has received a valid 
commencement notice (i.e. where pre-commencement conditions have not 
been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the 
ability to claim any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be 
foregone.  You must apply for any relief and receive confirmation from the 
Council before commencing development.  For further information please 
see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil. 

 
 
 

Page 27

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/cil


 

 

 
 

29 LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS 
 

 The report of the Service Lead City Development was submitted. 
  
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

30 APPEALS REPORT 
 

 The schedule of appeal decisions and appeals lodged was submitted. 
 

RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 
 

31 SITE INSPECTION PARTY 
 

 RESOLVED that the scheduling of the next Site Inspection Party for Tuesday 7 
April 2020 at 9.30 a.m., with Members listed as Councillors Branston, Foale and 
Williams be noted. Update - site inspection cancelled. 
 
 
 
 

 
(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 7.44 pm) 

 
 

Chair 

Page 28



Committee Date: 27 April 2020 
 
APPLICATION NO:  20/0194/ECC 
 
APPLICANT: Exeter City Council  
 
LOCATION:   The Night Shelter, Magdalen Street, Exeter 
 
PROPOSAL: Amendment to reference 18/1031/ECC to include all year round 

Night Shelter and Community Facility (Sui Generis) for homeless 
people. 

 
REGISTRATION DATE: 12th February 2020 
 
RELATED DOCUMENTS:  http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q
5LATBHBGD200 

 
HISTORY OF SITE: 
 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Decision Date 
 
18/1031/ECC  Change of Use to winter night 

shelter and community facility 
for homeless people (Sui 
Generis). 

PER 04.09.2018 

 
18/1575/DIS  Discharge of Condition 3 in 

application 18/1031/ECC. 
PER 30.10.2018 

 
11/0337/ADV  Externally illuminated fascia 

signs on north and south 
elevations, non-illuminated 
fascia signs on west (2) and 
east elevations. 

PER 24.01.2012 

 
01/1303/ADV  Externally illuminated and non-

illuminated signs (13 No.in total) 
PER 26.10.2001 

 
94/0089/FUL  External alterations including 

provision of new 
entrance on north elevation 

PER 24.03.1994 

 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
Permission is sought for the use the existing building situated on Magdalen Street, at the 
eastern end of the Acorn car park, as all year round night shelter and community facility for 
homeless people in Exeter.  
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q5LATBHBGD200
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q5LATBHBGD200
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q5LATBHBGD200


This application is seeking permission to amend the planning permission 18/1031/ECC, granted 
in September 2018. The previous application 18/1031/ECC granted a change of use of the 
former Spice Island Restaurant to a winter night shelter and community facility for homeless 
people. The new application is to request to change the opening time of the shelter to be open 
all year round and not just from October through until April, which was granted in the previous 
application.  
 
Night Shelter  
The night shelter remains a mixed gender facility and provides a dry warm and safe place for 
rough sleepers and homeless people to sleep throughout the year.  Without safe premises, 
especially in the winter and during periods of severe weather, there is an increased risk that 
rough sleepers and homeless people will become seriously ill or die due to exposure to freezing 
temperatures. In the event of severe weather an emergency protocol exists between partner 
agencies in the city, this would see the Protocol being activated and additional bed spaces up to 
a maximum of 40 being provided at the night shelter. 
 
The homeless community is transitory with many people becoming homeless for a few days or a 
few weeks, others are entrenched rough sleepers. The night Shelter has helped a number of 
people over the past two years that it has been in operation.      
  
This is an opportunity to engage with homeless people and help them move onto more stable 
accommodation. The service will work closely with the City Council’s Housing Needs Service 
and ensure that people using the shelter are properly supported through the pathway, reducing 
their stay in the Night Shelter and on into more suitable, stable and affordable accommodation. 
It is intended that the facility will be managed by BCHA who manage a number of similar 
services in the City more notably Gabriel House which is a 40 bed Single Homelessness 
Project.  BCHA have over 40 years of experience in a diverse range of housing, support and 
learning services for socially excluded people.  
 
The night shelter will be staffed by a minimum of two workers during opening hours. They would 
be responsible for booking in and allocating bed spaces for clients. They would also have 
responsibility for ensuring the safety of service users throughout the night as well as monitoring 
behaviour to ensure compliance with the accommodation rules. The applicant stresses the 
importance of working closely with the surrounding community and ensure that all efforts are 
made to reduce the impact on community and businesses.  
 
Sleeping accommodation would in the main be dormitory style rooms on the first floor with either 
two or three sets of bunk beds per room providing a total of 18 bed spaces.  A further 8 beds will 
be located on the ground floor. From April to October there will be a reduced capacity of 14, this 
is in recognition that for some people they would chose to rough sleep during periods where the 
weather is warmer.   In the event of the Severe Weather Emergency Protocol being declared 
there would be additional capacity available at the shelter. 
 
There would be separate male and female toilet and washing and showering facilities on the 
first floor. There is also an adapted toilet on the ground floor.  
 
The applicant’s intention is to be working with the voluntary sector and soup kitchens to enable 
food and additional support to be provided from the premises reducing the need for this to take 
place on the streets. 
 
 

Page 30



Community Facility for the Homeless  
In order to make the best use of the facility throughout the year and dependent on future 
funding, the applicant also wishes to use the property as a community facility for the homeless.  
The community facility will provide educational and recreational opportunities for homeless 
people in the city, promoting and improving general health and wellbeing.  As a the city currently 
lacks community facilities for homeless people and this venue will provides a significant 
opportunity to help fulfil lives alongside the accommodation projects in the city. All activities 
taking place on the premises will be fully supervised by professional staff through arrangements 
with voluntary services and partner agencies working in the city. The applicant will also seek to 
engage the local community in supporting volunteering and work experience opportunities for 
users of the service.   
 
Existing Building 
The existing configuration is an open space on the ground floor which will be used for the 
Community Facility and additional put up beds for the Night Shelter with living accommodation 
above.  
 
Proposed adaptations 
There are no proposed additional adaptations outside of those which have already been granted 
in the original application 18/1031/ECC 
 
Access 
The night shelter would be open throughout the year.  Opening Hours would be: 
Monday - Friday 18.00 – 09.00 
Weekends and Bank Holidays 18.00 -12.00  
 
The rationale for extending the opening hours at the weekends and Bank Holidays is because 
St Petrocks day centre, which provides basic survival and other supporting services for the 
homeless community in Exeter, is only open on weekdays.  The requested alteration is for an 
opening time from 20:00 to 18:00.  The alteration to opening times is on the back of consultation 
with rough sleepers, they have stated that they often struggle during the hours of 17:00 to 20:00 
when the shelter opens as there is no where they can go especially when the weather is 
unfavourable.  
 
During the daytime hours the building would be used as an educational/training and community 
facility for homeless people in Exeter, working with voluntary agencies in the city to provide 
support and promote recovery.  Subject to staff availability the facility would be open between 
10.00 and 17.00 Monday-Friday.   
 
During times of Severe Weather and when Exeter City Council and partners have activated its 
severe weather protocol (SWEP) we would look to increase capacity up to 40 and staff 
permitting, be open throughout the day.  SWEP is usually activated when outside temperatures 
drop below zero for three consecutive days, but can also include storms and extremely hot 
weather.  The primary aim will be to reduce harm and prevent loss of life.  The request is that 
the building remains open throughout this period, more notably at the weekends when other 
services are closed.  This is to ensure that rough sleepers are able to remain safe and secure 
during the day as well as in the evenings and night time.  In light of the Covid-19 pandemic the 
management plan has been amended to add flexibility to handle other emergency situations 
than Severe Weather. 
 
 

Page 31



SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
Letter of support 
Planning statement 
Management Plan 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
Two objections were received. 
The letters of objection had the following concerns and comments about the proposed use: 

i. Noise, disturbance and nuisance 
ii. Overlooking 
iii. Congregation outside the shelter 
iv. Unsafe environment 
v. Anti-social behaviour 
vi. Litter 
vii. Conditions regarding noise levels, management plan, CCTV, window treatment, 

prohibition of use of terrace, and lighting. 
The objectors also argued that this was not the right location for the proposed use. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
No consultations replies were received. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
Central Government Guidance 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2012 
CP10 – Community facilities 
CP11 – Pollution and air quality 
CP17 – Design and local distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 Saved Policies 
AP1 – Design and location of development 
AP2 – Sequential approach  
T9 – Access to building by people with disabilities 
C1 – Conservation areas 
C2 – Listed buildings 
EN3 – Air and water quality 
DG4 – Residential layout and amenity 
DG7 – Crime prevention and safety 
 
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents 
Residential Design SPD 2010 
 
Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans 
Southernhay and the Friars 2002 
 
OBSERVATIONS 
This application is an amendment to of 18/1031/ECC to include an all year round night shelter 
and a community facility for homeless people. The use of night shelter and community facility is 
therefore an established use for this site, even if the night shelter use was previously only 
permitted from October through until April. The planning decision in the previous application was 

Page 32



that “…taking account of the positives and negatives of granting consent for this proposal, the 
conclusion is that the positives are heavily weighing in favour for the proposed change of use”. 
As this application seeks to extend the period when the night shelter is open to all year round, 
the planning consideration is how this alters the balance of positives and negatives. Even more 
importantly, if it still can be deemed that the positives are weighing in favour for the proposed 
use. 
 
It will still provide a community facility for homeless people and therefore be compliant with the 
protection and provision of community use in Exeter Local Development Framework Core 
Strategy Policy CP 10, meeting the community needs by promoting social inclusion and reduce 
deprivation. The policy states that facilities that serve the city as a whole should be located in 
the city.  Social inclusion can be defined as the act of making all groups of people within a 
society feel valued and important. The building is already converted into night shelter and 
community facility for homeless people, extended this use to all year round would make better 
use of this facility. This is therefore preferable compared with alternatives that only provide night 
shelter in mobile and temporary buildings. This is true all year round even if rough sleeping is 
more lethal during the winter months. The number of occupants during the winter months is 
consequently proposed to be higher than during the rest of the year. 
 
This central location makes it a suitable location to be an alternative to rough sleeping in the 
central part of Exeter. It is also a good location to support the community of homeless people in 
Exeter. The location is also suitable with regard to residential amenity and neighbouring 
properties. The overlooking is not contrary to the guidance in the Residential Design SPD. 
Overlooking between the hotel and proposed night shelter is minimal and no more detrimental 
than the former use of the building.  
 
The existing use from October through until April for the night shelter is the same as what is 
proposed all year round but accommodating less people outside the winter months. The use 
would be less detrimental for the surrounding area and neighbours for the months the use is 
extended. The neighbours object to have a night shelter for homeless people during the whole 
year, as this is seen more onerous for them. It is deemed that the disturbance with fewer beds is 
less for the summer months than the winter months. To open the night shelter during the 
summer months would have a significant impact for the people using the shelter and a great 
public benefit by contributing to social inclusion, reducing deprivation and supporting homeless 
and rough sleepers when they are most vulnerable and at risk to become seriously ill. 
 
The management plan and an area to congregate at the south entrance of the building is 
designed to mitigate any negative aspect of congregation around the building; this is not 
different to the measure that is already in place for the current planning permission. The location 
of the building is also in a noisy area situated on a frequently used car park surrounded by busy 
roads.  
 
Crime and fear of crime is a material planning consideration and it is acknowledged that some 
residents and the nearby hotel are apprehensive about such a facility operating in the area. 
Devon and Cornwall Police in their consultation response to the current planning permission 
18/1031/ECC had no objections in principle and gave the applicants advice on how to setup of 
the facility to reduce the risks of crime and anti-social behaviour. Devon and Cornwall Police 
has not given any renewed consultation reply for this application. 
  
Although the fear of crime and personal safety is perceived from objectors as a result of the 
proposed use, the result might actually be the opposite, giving the homeless an alternative to 

Page 33



rough sleeping and support in their current situation; the existing issues with rough sleeping in 
the City Centre will probably be reduced even if it will not solve the homelessness problem in 
Exeter. The change of use will therefore conform to Policy DG7 – Crime prevention and safety 
in Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 by the prevention measures for the site and 
surroundings, and also with the purpose of the policy by improving the situation for rough 
sleepers in general.  
 
Although the proposed use has primarily a social objective it does have an impact how people 
visiting or work experiencing the City with less rough sleepers. How people experience a city 
which does care for homeless people could have a direct impact on shopping, and tourism, but 
also influence how attractive the City is to work and live in.  
 
The change of use will conform to NPPF, Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy, 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011, Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning 
Document and Exeter City Council Development Delivery DPD. The conclusion is that the 
change of use will have a minor impact on the surrounding area but a great public benefit by 
contributing to social inclusion, reduce deprivation and support homeless and rough sleepers 
when they are as most vulnerable and at risk to become seriously ill or die due to exposure to 
freezing temperatures during winter months.  
 
As a planning decision must be made in accordance with material considerations and taking 
account of the positives and negatives of granting consent for this proposal, the conclusion is 
that the positives are still heavily weighing in favour for the proposed use. The extended use of 
the night shelter outside the winter months has not change this conclusion compared with the 
current planning permission 18/1031/ECC. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
APPROVE, subject to the following 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason:  To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 
 2) The development and use hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 
accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 12 February 
2020 as modified by other conditions of this consent. 
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings and documents. 
 
 3) Occupation shall be managed in accordance with the hereby approved Management Plan 
(16-04-2020_Annex_D) submitted with the application and not commence until the agreed 
measures have been put in place. Any future amendments of this Management Plan shall be 
approved in writing by Local Planning Authority and include the following: A) details of the 
management arrangements for the property, including procedures for dealing with (i) 
management problems, (ii) anti-social behaviour, (iii) noise and (iv) fires or other emergencies; 
and, B) the maximum number of bed spaces to be occupied at any one time. 
Reason: To help protect the existing residential amenity standards currently enjoyed by 
neighbouring properties. 
 

Page 34



 
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



1:500
Date:

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100049053

Scale:

¯

LOCATION PLAN 3/7/18

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE DATE: 27 April 2020 
 
 
APPLICATION NO  19/0962/FUL 
 
APPLICANT   Verto Homes 
 
LOCATION   Land at Pulling Road, Pinhoe, Exeter  
 
PROPOSAL Residential development for 40 dwellings with associated 

access, landscaping, open space and infrastructure  
 
REGISTRATION DATE 9 August 2019 
 
RELATED DOCUMENTS http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&k
eyVal=PUQOCFHBILS00 

 
Member’s comments from 10 February 2020 Planning Committee  
 
Members expressed disappointment that the affordable housing provision was less than the 
City Council policy compliant level of 35%. Further consideration should be given to both 
increasing the affordable housing provision and reducing car parking spaces. 
The balance between the construction of zero carbon dwellings and affordable housing 
provision should be re-visited; 
The cumulative impact of developments in Pinhoe as well as East Devon is detrimental to 
the highway network and leading to increased congestion. A car free development would 
therefore be preferable.  
2 electric charging points should be provided for each property. 
 
Officer’s Update from last Planning Committee 
 
Representations 
 
One additional letter of objection received from the landowner of the adjacent field 
concerning:- 
1.Substandard vehicular access would have a negative impact on existing residents during 
construction and in the future following completion; 
2. Access from Pulling Road does not take account of potential for future expansion to the 
north and east of the site; 
3. Access from Bourne Rise would provide a more suitable access point. 
 
Further information provided by Applicant 
 
Parking provision - The previous iteration of the layout considered by the Committee 
provided the following: allocated parking spaces 76 (including 69 on plot spaces, 2 carport 
spaces & 5 roadside spaces); visitor parking spaces 10 and garages 13. (It should be noted 
that the Highway Authority Devon County Council will not count garages within parking 
space provision).  
 
The total number of spaces is therefore currently 76 allocated spaces and 10 visitor spaces, 
or 86 spaces. 
 
In response to the Planning Committee request it is proposed to reduce the number of 
allocated spaces to 69. (a loss of 7 spaces)  This will be achieved through a reduction in 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PUQOCFHBILS00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PUQOCFHBILS00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PUQOCFHBILS00


spaces for Plots 31 and 32 and through a change of allocated spaces for Plots 3, 4 and 5 to 
1 space per dwelling. The number of visitor spaces will be increased to 13 spaces resulting 
in a total for the site of 82 ( a loss of 4 spaces) for a total of 40 units. 
 
Whilst it can be reasonably assumed that residents of this zero carbon development may be 
more inclined towards a lower level of car ownership, these aspirations may not be shared 
by visitors to the site.  It is therefore important to ensure that there is sufficient spaces 
provided within the site to avoid excessive levels of on street parking either within the site 
itself, or neighbouring streets. It should be noted that one of the concerns raised during 
consultation on the application was about the potential for car parking to spill onto 
neighbouring streets and the number of parking spaces had been previously increased in 
response to this. 
 
Charging points - Following advice from a specialist supplier of home charging equipment, 
the agent considers that the provision of two charging points per dwelling as suggested 
during last committee meeting would be an over-specification. This is based on the 
availability of power usage for each dwelling and its impact on the local grid network and the 
anticipated driving behaviour of residents. Previous experience indicates that charge-points 
are not used to full speed all the time. Given the average driving behaviour of 22 miles a day 
in the UK the requirement for residents to charge two cars simultaneously will be highly 
unlikely on the presumption they are driving average electric vehicles with a range of 180 
miles. The provision of two charge-points would only serve to meet the extremely unlikely 
situation that both cars are driven to the point of almost empty and both return home at the 
same time and both vehicles require an urgent charge in order to proceed with an onward 
journey.  It is therefore not considered practical or advisable to engineer a solution for such a 
rare customer behaviour. 
 
Observations 
 
Since the previous meeting officers have discussed the affordable housing provision with the 
agent stressing that the original level proposed was unacceptable to Members and without a 
significantly enhanced offer it is likely that the application would be refused. During the 
dialogue and correspondence with the applicant it is clear that are keen develop this site 
within Exeter and accordingly, notwithstanding the viability report findings, has agreed to 
increase the number of affordable housing by additional 4 units on site. This would increase 
the overall affordable housing provision from the original 6 units (15%) to 10 units (25%) of 
the total 40 houses to be provided. The applicant has indicated that 6 of these units would 
be social rent and the remainder discounted market housing. The type of tenure and plots 
would need to be agreed within the Section 106 agreement. Members are reminded that this 
exceeds the previous level of affordable housing which was accepted by the Council’s own 
viability appraiser. It is acknowledged that even the reduced level does not meet the 35% 
requirement but as set out in the report the undertaking of viability report to explain the 
reduction is recognised within the NPPF. It is therefore considered that this latest offer 
represents a significant enhanced level of affordable housing than originally proposed and 
accordingly the scheme is recommended for approval. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
The application site (1.56 ha) is located on land to north of existing properties in Pulling 
Road and Bourne Rise. Further to the north three properties are located, accessed from a 
private drive off Church Hill. An open field lies to the east of the site with further properties 
overlooking the site from Church Hill. The site comprises of an undulating field used for 
horse grazing. The site slopes distinctly from north to south. The site is bounded to the north, 
west and south by mature trees and hedgerows. Access to the site is currently achieved 
from a track to the north east corner of the site that leads onto Church Hill. 

Page 40



 
The application seeks to develop the site for 40 dwellings with a new access off Pulling 
Road. The dwellings are proposed to be zero carbon smart homes with a mix of apartments 
(including 1 wheelchair accessible flat), terrace (3 units), semi-detached (16 units) and (19 
units) detached properties, the majority of which are 3 and 4 bedroomed. The majority of the 
dwellings will be two storey with nine being split level three storey which take account of the 
sloping nature of the site. The majority of the house types incorporate brick, timber, some 
zinc cladding with natural slate/zinc roofing within a contemporary design. The scheme’s 
density is approximately 25 dwellings per hectare.  
 
A new access is proposed off Pulling Road. This will be created by extending the existing 
turning head off Pulling Road following the demolition of the existing garage of No. 8 Pulling 
Road. The construction of the access will include the creation of a new culvert over the 
existing stream ditch. The narrowness of the access will means that access/egress of the 
site will be a one way priority system. The arrangement does allow for emergency and 
refuse vehicles to use the access. A restricted footway is provided at the entrance of the site 
due to the limited space available. The layout indicates that an emergency access is 
proposed to the north east corner of the site. In addition a new pedestrian access is 
proposed to the north-west corner of the site to link in with the Pinhoe Quarry development 
beyond the existing mature treeline to the west. 
 
The development proposes a total of 86 car parking spaces to serve the 40 dwellings 
through a combination of onsite spaces and a 10 visitor’s spaces. Cycle parking is proposed 
to be provided within each of the plots. 
 
The application proposes an area of open space to the west of the site adjacent to an 
existing mature tree line. No formal provision of open space children’s play area is proposed 
within the site because the proposed development is less than 50 dwellings and therefore is 
not a requirement under Local Plan Policy DG5, although the applicants have offered to pay 
a commuted sum toward this provision off site. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 
The application is supported by a Planning Statement, Design and Access Statement, 
Ecological Impact Assessment, Flood Risk Assessment. Landscape and Visual Impact 
Assessment; Statement of Community Involvement; Transport Statement; Tree Survey; Tree 
Constraints Plan; Arboricultural Impact Assessment; Tree Protection Plan and Utilities Plan. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
26 letters/emails of objection received. Principal issues raised:- 
1. Too much development already in Pinhoe; 
2. Infrastructure cannot cope with further development in the area; 
3. Loss of habitat; 
4. Potential for flooding in the area; 
5. Loss of green space; 
6. Increased traffic leading to congestion; 
7. Impact on wildlife such as badger, foxes, bats, sand lizards, dormice, slow worms etc; 
8. Poor access arrangement; 
9. Noise from heat pumps; 
10. No construction traffic should use private drive to the north; 
11. Restrictive access into the site; 
12. Construction traffic will affect existing hedgerow/trees; 
13. Loss of privacy from increased vehicular and pedestrian activity adjacent to existing 
property; 

Page 41



14. Noise and dust from construction traffic;  
15. Contribute to parking problems within Pulling Road; 
16. Impact on existing drainage/sewerage system; 
17. Light pollution from vehicles; 
18. Noise, light, pollution from resident’s vehicles; 
19. Lack of affordable housing; 
20. No permission for emergency access over private land as shown on plan; 
21. Lack of privacy from vehicles using emergency track adjacent to existing neighbour’s 
gardens; 
22. Impact on existing trees; 
23. Need for additional screening from the site to the south; 
24. No children’s play area proposed on site; 
25. Lack of secure cycle parking; 
26. Poor pedestrian/cycle permeability. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
The County Head of Planning Transportation and Environment comment that the 
submitted Transport Assessment suggest that trip rates to the proposed development would 
create 24 two-way AM peak hour vehicle trips & 23 two-way PM peak trips. 
 
In order to bring development forward in the Pinhoe area (as the network is congested, with 
specific interest on the impact of the Pinhoe Double Mini-roundabouts), a strategy (Pinhoe 
Area Access Strategy - PAAS) was created to ensure that planned development (identified 
in the two local plans {ECC and EDDC}) in the Pinhoe area would be supported with 
appropriate and effective transport infrastructure measures.  
 
Since the PAAS was written, a number of the planned developments have now come 
forward and much of the identified transport infrastructure delivered. There has also been 
additional development beyond that initially planned for and the designation of a Village 
Green on part of Eastern Fields prevents the Exhibition Way Link Road, one of the key 
mitigation measures.  
Consequently, to improve the choice of sustainable modes, provide additional route choice 
and enhance public realm and safety, a PAAS addendum has been populated. 
 
To make this application acceptable in highway terms a contribution is sought from the 
developer to enable DCC to carry out the measures identified in the addendum. This 
approach is consistent with the approved Home Farm development (ECC Planning Ref: 
16/1576/OUT) which had previously been approved by ECC with this S106 request.  It is 
also consistent with the Pinn Court Farm application (EDDC Planning Ref: 12/0795/MOUT) 
which also was granted consented at appeal subject to S106 obligations.  
 
Therefore, to act as a fair and reasonable approach a pro-rata sum from the Home Farm 
Development is taken. The Home Farm development secured £390k from 120 homes and 
therefore for 40 homes (as per this application) a contribution of £130k is required to fund 
measures identified in the PAAS addendum.  
 
Access 
Vehicular access to the site is via Pulling Road and is shown on Drawing Number 100 Rev 
E; this shows that priority system is being proposed over a culvert. Vehicles approaching the 
Pulling Road side have priority over vehicles exiting the proposed site, with the drawing 
showing forward visibility of 50m which is ample enough for one vehicle to see another on 
approach. The applicant has also proved that a refuse vehicle can pass by an estate vehicle 
whilst stationary on either side of the give way system. In order to achieve this, changes to 

Page 42



Pulling Road are required – this involves partial narrowing of the footways on the Pulling 
Road side – this is acceptable in principle.  
 
The second point of access is an emergency access onto Church Hill; this will be closed at 
all times for vehicles accept for when is absolutely necessary. The visibility out onto Church 
Hill is substandard, but given the very limited movements, this does not form a reason for 
refusal.  
The primary point of pedestrian access is also via Pulling Road using the culvert. It is 
recognised and has been discussed with the developer that there is a pinch point at the 
culvert where the footway narrows down to 1.2m (the absolute minimum as per Manual for 
Streets), but as this is only for a short section and widens out at a later point this is 
acceptable. It is noted that due to the widening works to allow refuse lorries through, one 
side of Pulling Road footway also narrows down to 1.2m; it is acknowledged that there is a 
pedestrian crossing point proposed further down Pulling Road.  
 
The above access points have been through a Road Safety Audit and is therefore 
acceptable. These access works should be secured under the appropriate Highways Act. 
Finally, the applicant is providing a footway link to the north of plot 21, connecting into 
Pinhoe Quarry (ECC Planning Ref: 19/1100/RES) adding to the sustainability to the site.  
 
Internal Roads and layout  
Well-designed residential streets are central to sustainable development and therefore the 
design of the internal road layout must accord with the principles of Manual for Streets and 
appropriate sustainable design guidance.  
 
The applicant has liaised with the Highway Authority numerous times to discuss the internal 
layout and consists of a 4.8m carriageway and a 2m footway throughout the scheme. To the 
north-eastern parcel of the scheme a shared space approach has been taken which is 
acceptable given the number of units accessing this section of development.  
The applicant has provided visibility splays on the submitted drawings (2.4 x 25m) for the 
internal layout which is acceptable given the likely speeds that are likely to occur in a 
residential development. A Traffic Regulation Order is required to extend the 20mph zone 
that is already in place on Pulling Road.  
 
The rest of the vehicular layout is broadly acceptable for a residential development and has 
been through a number of iterations with the applicant. There are however a few elements of 
the design which are overly highway focused for residential streets. Options to provide a 
lower speed environment that better encompasses the manual for streets philosophies 
should be refined through the Section 38 process.  
 
On Site Facilities 
The onsite layout appears to have enough parking spaces on site together with a number of 
visitor parking bays. Many of the onsite parking spaces are located immediately outside of 
the respective properties (rather than being placed in parking courts) which should minimise 
on street parking and is welcomed.  
 
It is not clear if secure covered cycle parking has been provided for all of the dwellings 
(including flats) proposed the applicant should provide further detail and the quantum should 
meet the standard set out in the Sustainable Transport SPD. To complement the good links 
to cycle routes, a condition is recommended to ensure secure cycle parking is provided.  
 
Travel Planning  
In accordance with paragraph 111 of the NPPF and the Sustainable Transport SPD, the 
development will be required to have a Travel Plan each. A Travel Plan should be introduced 
including details of walking and cycling routes, as well as public transport including maps, 

Page 43



timetables, and information about ticket offers. It should also include information about car 
sharing schemes, car clubs, eco-driving and motorcycle safety. These measures should be 
encouraged to continue the promotion of non-car-based travel. Note a financial contribution 
is not sought from this development as the proposals fall below the 50 dwellings which 
triggers a S106 request.  
 
Construction 
The proposals will require demolition/construction work adjacent in a sensitive area of the 
highway. To protect the safety of users of the public highway it is essential that the 
construction arrangements are carefully managed, and that appropriate space is available 
off the highway for all construction plant/vehicles. A condition is recommended to ensure 
this, and the applicant is advised to meet to agree suitable working arrangements prior to 
commencement. 

As mentioned previously, the submitted application includes a new culvert which is to 
support a new highway. To ensure the safety of users of the highway, the applicant is 
advised, prior to the construction of the culvert, a detailed AIP shall be checked and 
approved by the DCC structures team.  
 
Summary 
The additional traffic impacts in the Pinhoe Area are a fundamental concern, however with 
the PAAS strategy in place together with the S106 contributions to be made to DCC to 
provide suitable infrastructure, the impacts of the development can be mitigated. Subject to 
these conditions being attached in the granting of any permission the highway authority 
would raise no objection to the proposed developments.   

 

The applicant is reminded that the Highway Authority will expect blacktop and imprint on the 
adoptable areas. Although not a reason for refusal any area of block paving is acceptable in 
principle, but the applicant is reminded that blocks will be replaced with black top (when 
required for maintenance etc). 

 
The Council’s Environmental Health officer raise no objections subject to a condition in 
respect of unexpected contamination which may be found at the site during construction. 
 
RSPB recommend one integral bird/bat box per residential unit in line with the biodiversity 
requirements of the Residential Design Guide SPD. 
 
South West Water comment that they are able to provide clean water from the existing 
public water main and foul sewerage services from the existing public foul or combined 
sewer in the vicinity of the site. The applicant will be required to contact to SWW for more 
information.   
 
Devon County Flood Risk Management Team raise no in principle objections from a 
surface water drainage perspective subject to pre-commencement conditions. Comment is 
made that the applicant has put forward a feasible surface water drainage solution. Due to 
the layout of the site attenuation tanks are deemed an acceptable form of surface water 
management as it is understood that the drainage strategy is restricted. 
 
NHS has requested that a financial contribution is made towards providing additional health 
care services to meet patient demand. A response has been given to the NHS to their 
request stating that there is a lack of policy justification for contributions at the current time, 
which are considered to be strategic in nature and not specific to any one site. 
 
Devon County Education officer has identified that a development up to 39 family type 
dwellings will generate an additional 9.75 primary pupils and 5.85 secondary pupils which 

Page 44



would have a direct impact on the primary and secondary schools in Exeter. In order to 
make the development acceptable in planning terms, an education contribution to mitigate its 
impact will be requested. This is set out below: 
 
We have forecast that there is enough spare primary capacity for 6.00 pupils and therefore 
we will request primary education contributions against the remaining 3.75 pupils expected 
to be generated from this development. The primary contribution sought would be £60,071 
(based on the DfE new build rate of £16,019 per pupil).  The contributions will be used 
towards new primary provision at Monkerton. 
 
We have forecast that there is enough spare secondary capacity for 1.35 pupils and 
therefore we will request secondary education contributions against the remaining 4.50 
pupils expected to be generated from this development. The secondary contribution sought 
would be £109,174 (based on the DfE new build rate of £24,261 per pupil).   The 
contributions will be used towards new secondary provision at South West Exeter.  This new 
provision will release capacity at secondary schools in the East of Exeter to serve Monkerton 
and surrounding development.      
 
In addition, a contribution towards Early Years provision is needed to ensure delivery of 
provision for 2, 3 and 4 year olds. This is calculated as £9,750 (based on £250 per dwelling). 
This will be used to provide early years provision for pupils likely to be generated by the 
proposed development.  The contributions will be used towards new early year’s provision at 
Monkerton. 
 
In addition to the contribution figures quoted above, the County Council would wish to 
recover legal costs incurred as a result of the preparation and completion of the Agreement.  
Legal costs are not expected to exceed £500.00 where the agreement relates solely to the 
education contribution.  However, if the agreement involves other issues or if the matter 
becomes protracted, the legal costs are likely to be in excess of this sum. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance - National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 
3. Plan making 
4.  Decision-making 
11.  Making effective use of land 
12.  Achieving well-designed places 
15.       Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012) 
CP1     Spatial Strategy 
CP4     Residential Density  
CP5 Meeting Housing Needs 
CP7     Affordable Housing 
CP12   Flood Risk 
CP14   Renewable Energy 
CP15 Sustainable Construction 
CP16   Green Infrastructure 
CP17 Design and Local Distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005) 
AP1 Design and Location of Development 
AP2 Sequential Approach  
H1 Search Sequence 
H2 Location Priorities 

Page 45



H5 Diversity of Housing 
LS1     Landscape Setting 
T1 Hierarchy of Modes 
T2 Accessibility Criteria 
T3 Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes  
C2 Listed buildings 
C5  Archaeology 
DG1 Objectives of Urban Design 
DG2  Energy Conservation 
DG4    Residential Layout and Amenity 
DG5    Provision of Open Space and Childrens Play Areas 
DG6    Vehicular Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development  
DG7    Crime Prevention and Safety 
 
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version) 
This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted and does not 
form part of the Development Plan. 
DD1 Sustainable Development 
DD13 Residential Amenity 
DD20 Sustainable Movement 
DD25 Design Principles 
DD29   Landscape Setting Areas 
‘Development within the Landscape Setting Areas will only be permitted where: 
a) there is no harm to the distinctive characteristics and special qualities of the landscape 
setting of the City and the wider area; and 
b) it does not contribute towards the urbanisation of these areas; and…’ 
 
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents 
Sustainable Transport (March 2013)  
Affordable Housing  
Residential Design Guide (2010) 
 
OBSERVATIONS 
 
Principle of development 
The application site lies in an area designated as landscaping setting with Exeter Local Plan 
which seeks to resist development which would harm the local distinctiveness and character. 
However Members will be aware that the Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year 
supply of deliverable housing site. A consequence is that the relevant Local Plan policy LS1 
has been given limited weight by Inspectors at recent appeal decisions relating to residential 
schemes within areas of landscape setting. This is due to the policy being out of date 
effectively seeking to limit development to the existing urban area rather than providing 
sufficient site specific landscape assessment which ensures that the character of the area is 
maintain. However full planning weight is attached to Core Strategy policy CP16 which 
seeks to protect and enhance the character and local distinctiveness of areas identified 
within the key diagram (within which this site is located). However as evident from the appeal 
decision at the nearby Home Farm Inspectors consider that the objective of Policy CP16 
does not seek to prevent all development within the areas shown on the key diagram as it 
needs to be balanced against the needs to bring forward deliverable housing site. In 
summary, the impact of the development on the landscape character of the site in this 
particular instance needs to be balanced against the need for housing to meet the five year 
housing supply. 
 
It is clear that the impact of 40 dwellings and associated infrastructure will result in a 
significant change to the character of this landscape on this site. The applicant has provided 

Page 46



detailed a detailed landscape scheme which seeks to supplement the existing trees and 
hedgerows around the site which are indicated to remain. In particular the mature trees are 
to be retained to the south and west of the site. More limited additional planting is proposed 
within the internal layout of the housing and consequently it is considered the resultant 
development will appear significantly urbanised in contrast to its present state, which is 
heighted to a certain extent by the stepped nature of the site. Notwithstanding the applicants 
attempts to integrate the development within the area through additional planting it is 
inevitable that development will have a significant impact on the character of the area.  
 
As previously stated the landscape designation itself cannot be relied upon to resist 
development in principle given the limited weight attached to Local Plan Policy LS1. 
Consequently it is necessary to consider the context within which the application site is 
located. Recent approvals and development at Pinhoe Quarry and Home Farm respectively 
will and have resulted in an extension of the urban area in this location. The site will be set 
within the context of these two major residential schemes and within the existing established 
development to the south. It is considered that its contribution to overall landscape character 
of area in strategic terms is now diminished. In light of recent appeal decisions it would be 
difficult to argue that the landscape quality of this site should be afforded greater weight that 
the provision of housing in this instance. Accordingly it is considered that the principle of 
residential development in this location is acceptable. 
 
Zero Carbon development  
The applicants are promoting zero carbon housing for the whole scheme. This will take the 
forms of solar pv panels, highly insulated air tight construction, mechanical ventilation and 
heat recovery, air and ground source heat pumps, smart home integration and double/triple 
glazed windows. The properties will not incorporate fossil fuel heating eg gas boiler and will 
contribute towards meeting carbon neutral target which is a City Council aim. The applicants 
are seeking to achieve an exemplar scheme for future residential development in the city by 
demonstrating that sustainable and zero carbon construction is deliverable at larger scales. 
In addition, the applicant has stated its intention to achieve a net gain in ecological habitat, 
improvements to footpath to adjacent site in Pinhoe Quarry and provide electric pool cars 
and bike availability for future residents of the site. Verto Homes have stated that they have 
won a number of awards in the industry for their sustainable construction methods. The 
promotion of zero carbon dwellings exceeds the development plan requirements for 
sustainable construction however it is clearly to be welcomed as an approach to carbon 
neutrality and adds further weight to planning balance to this site’s appropriate for residential 
development. A consequence of the applicant’s approach has however inevitably led to an 
increase in the building cost per dwelling (estimated at approximately £27,700) and this has 
been reflected in the provision of affordable housing proposed.  
 
Affordable Housing provision 
The applicant has offered 15% on site affordable housing. A policy compliant scheme 
requires a 35% provision of affordable housing. The applicant’s offer would equate to 6 
affordable housing on site out of a total of 40. This figure has been reached following the 
submission of a viability report which has been assessed by the Council’s independent 
viability consultant. Whilst originally the report stated that 5 affordable units could be justified 
the applicant have further increased this number to 6 in an attempt to achieve a percentage 
closer to the 35%. Clearly there is still a shortfall of 8 dwellings to meet the 35% requirement 
which would equate to 14 units. The NPPF recognises that the submission of viability 
assessment is justified where the applicant wishes to demonstrate that they are not able to 
comply with the development plan policies. In this instance it is accepted that the zero 
carbon nature of the housing provision whilst welcomed does come at a cost to the provision 
of affordable housing. The viability assessment forms part of the planning balance for this 
case and is stated in the NPPF as being a matter for the decision maker.  

Page 47



Since this original report the applicant has confirmed their agreement to increase the 
number of affordable units from 6 to 10 thereby increasing the percentage from 15 to 
25% of the total provision. This would relate to 6 social rented and 4 discount market 
homes. This would be covered by a 106 agreement. 
 
Educational Contribution 
Given the recent changes to the Community Infrastructure Levy Devon County Council as 
the Education Authority are seeking financial contributions in accordance with their 
Education Infrastructure Plan 2016-2033. The details are contained within Education officer’s 
response brut essential a financial contribution of £178,995 has been requested to cover the 
provision for primary (£60,071) secondary (£109,174) and early year’s provision (£9,750). It 
is currently considered that this educational contribution should be delivered via the 106 
agreement. However if it is subsequently agreed by the City Council that the education 
contribution will be met from CIL payments then the affordable housing provision should be 
revisited.   
 
Highway issues 
Local residents have raised significant concerns regarding the traffic generation to the site 
and wider impact on the Pinhoe area. The highway officer has been involved in detailed 
discussions with the applicant regarding the access off Pulling Road which has now resulted 
in an acceptable if compromised arrangement. The scheme has been through a road safety 
audit are therefore in overall terms is considered acceptable. The highway officers considers 
that the provision of a footway link to the north of plot 21 is to be welcomed and adds to the 
sustainability of the site. Whilst visually the main vehicular access will appear slightly 
contrived, in technical highway terms it does represent an acceptable and safe arrangement 
for vehicular, pedestrians and cyclists. The slope of the site has been challenging for the 
internal road layout but suitable parking areas and footways are now proposed and is 
considered acceptable. The highway officer recommends that a payment towards a traffic 
regulation order is required to extend the 20mph limit that is already in place on Pulling 
Road. In addition conditions are required to secure cycle parking, a travel plan, a 
construction and environmental management plan and the need to provide the detailed 
access arrangement onto Pulling Road before development commences. The plans indicate 
that an emergency access is to the north east of the site however it is clear that this should 
be used on restricted limited basis given the proximity to residential gardens and the poor 
visibility out onto Church Hill. This can be control with a planning condition. 
 
In response to concerns about the wider impact on 40 dwellings on the existing highway 
network in the Pinhoe area. The highway officer has stated that to make this scheme 
acceptable in highway terms a financial contribution of £130,000 is required to progress work 
identified in the Pinhoe Area Access Strategy. Whilst this has been clearly influenced the 
viability of the scheme in terms of a policy compliant affordable housing provision the issues 
raised by the highway officer are fundamental to acceptability of the scheme in traffic terms. 
This money will be paid through a 106 agreement.  
 
Layout and impact on neighbouring properties 
The scheme proposes dwellings with a distinctive appearance which include asymmetrical 
roofs to allow the roof to accommodate solar pv panels. The scheme proposals a variety of 
different external materials including brick, timber and natural slate with zinc feature 
cladding. The overall design approach for the proposed buildings is contemporary in contrast 
to the surrounding existing traditional housing of this area of Pinhoe. However it is 
considered that the variation of house designs and the materials used would create sufficient 
visual interest across the site to help break up its appearance which as previously stated is 
an area of landscape setting. It is therefore considered that the contemporary building 
design approach is acceptable in this location. 
 

Page 48



It is understood that the sloping nature of the site has required changes to the original road 
gradient and this has also impacted on the layout of the development. The proposed 
gardens in many instances are split level to take account of the slope within the site. Whilst 
this has result in relatively small gardens it is acceptable that they meet the minimum garden 
standards and are therefore appropriate in this location. In addition the layout has responded 
to the existing mature vegetation which exists to the south and west of the site. It is 
considered that the presence of the mature trees does provide a suitable setting for the 
development and helps to visually accommodate the proposed number of units on the site. 
The overall layout does appear as a logical combination of visual interest within the 
streetscene and level of amenity provision for future residents to be acceptable. 
 
The applicant has indicates a limited area of public open space to the west side of the site. It 
is accepted that as the development is less than 50 dwelling there is no policy requirement 
to provide 10% open space. The applicant has indicated that they will provide a pedestrian 
link to the north into the adjacent Pinhoe Quarry site, which is to be welcomed. In addition, 
the applicant has offered a financial contribution towards off site play equipment to 
compensate for the lack of play provision within the site.  
 
The proposed layout would result in limited impact on existing neighbouring properties. 
Whilst the access arrangement will inevitably result in increased traffic generation in Pulling 
Road and particularly for 8 Pulling Road given the technical highway matters have been 
resolved it is not considered that, on balance, permission could be withheld on this issue. 
Residents had raised concern about limited vegetation to the south of the site and the 
possibility for car headlights shining into their garden and the detrimental visual impact from 
the new buildings on higher ground backing onto their properties. However revised 
landscape plans indicate that additional planting is proposed in the gap between the existing 
vegetation and therefore it is considered that this issue have been suitably addressed. 
Residents to the north of the site have raised concerns about the potential use of the 
emergency vehicular access alongside their existing gardens. The applicants have indicated 
that this route will be used strictly in an emergency situation only and it is considered that a 
condition should be imposed to ensure that this is adhered to. 
 
Summary 
The site lies within an area of landscape setting as designated within the Local Plan however 
the context of the site’s location situated to the north of existing residential development in 
Pinhoe and between two development sites under construction is a significant consideration. 
Given the Council’s lack of deliverable housing sites to meet its 5 year housing supply it is 
unlikely that a refusal in principle could be sustained. In addition, whilst the scheme would 
achieve a provision of only 15% affordable housing, the applicant have submitted a viability 
report which states that the combination of zero carbon dwelling, a highway and educational 
contribution have result in the policy compliant level of 35% provision being unachievable.  
 
The conclusions of the viability assessment has been accepted by the Council’s independent 
viability assessor. The fundamental issue remains that the construction of zero carbon 
dwellings results in a reduction in affordable housing provision. However this is considered 
an acceptable compromise which will result in both additional dwellings to meet the 5 year 
housing supply and a housing product which meets the overall aims of the Council 
commitment toward being carbon neutral. Accordingly it is considered that the application is 
acceptable. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement in respect of affordable housings, a 
financial contribution towards highway (£130,000), educational contribution (£178,995) and 

Page 49



open space/children play facilities in the area to be agreed APPROVE subject to the 
following conditions:- 
 
1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of two years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.  
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91-92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 
accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 15 
January 2020 (dwg nos. ) as modified by other conditions of this consent.  
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings. 
 
3. Samples of the materials it is intended to use externally in the construction of the 
development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No external finishing 
material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that its use 
is acceptable. Thereafter the materials used in the construction of the development shall 
correspond with the approved samples in all respects.  
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity requirements of the 
area. 
 
4. No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall take place 
until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for: 
a) the site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction phase. 
b) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors. 
c) the areas for loading and unloading plant and materials. 
d) storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the development. 
e) the erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate.  
f) wheel washing facilities. 
g) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction.  
h) no burning on site during construction or site preparation works. 
i) measures to minimise noise nuisance to neighbours from plant and machinery. 
j) construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 
13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
k) no driven piling without prior consent from the LPA. 
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction period of 
the development. 
Reason:- In the interests of the occupants of nearby buildings. 
 
5. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at 
the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained 
written approval from the Local Planning Authority for an amended investigation and risk 
assessment and, where necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan detailing 
how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy and 
verification plan and prior to occupation of any part of the permitted development, a 
verification report demonstrating completion of the works set out in the approved remediation 
strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to and approved, in 
writing, by the local planning authority. 
Reason: No site investigation can completely characterise a site. This condition is required 
to ensure that any unexpected contamination that is uncovered during remediation or other 
site works is dealt with appropriately. 
 

Page 50



6. A detailed scheme for landscaping, including the planting of trees and/or shrubs (including 
the transplanting of a memorial tree), the use of surface materials and boundary screen 
walls and fences shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and no unit shall be 
occupied until the Local Planning Authority have approved a scheme; such scheme shall 
specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and planting densities, and any 
earthworks required together with the timing of the implementation of the scheme. The 
landscaping shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme in 
accordance with the agreed programme. 
Reason:  To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects 
and in the interests of amenity. 
 
7. Any trees, shrubs and/or hedges on or around the site shall not be felled, lopped or 
removed without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects 
and in the interests of amenity. 
 
8. In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with any scheme 
approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become established and to prosper for a period 
of five years from the date of the completion of implementation of that scheme, such trees or 
shrubs shall be replaced with such live specimens of such species of such size and in such 
number as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects 
and in the interests of amenity. 
 
9. No materials shall be brought onto the site or any development commenced, until the 
developer has erected tree protective fencing around all trees or shrubs to be retained, in 
accordance with a plan that shall previously have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS 
5837:2005 - ‘Trees in Relation to Construction’. The developer shall maintain such fences to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority until all development the subject of this 
permission is completed. The level of the land within the fenced areas shall not be altered 
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. No materials shall be stored 
within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for service runs or any other excavations take 
place within the fenced area except by written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
Where such permission is granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered 
equipment.  
Reason: To ensure the protection of the trees during the carrying out of the development. 
 
10. Prior to occupation of the building hereby approved place until details of provision for 
nesting swifts has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
in consultation with the RSPB. Upon written approval of the details, the scheme shall be fully 
implemented as part of the development and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of preservation and enhancement of biodiversity in the locality. 
 
11. Prior to the construction of any culvert supporting a new highway, a detailed Approval In 
Principle for the footbridge shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Highway 
Authority (Devon County Council). 
Reason: To ensure the integrity of adjacent structures and land 
 
12. No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use until 
the priority access on Pulling Road, including localised widening of Pulling Road and 
associated footways, as indicated on Drawing No. 100 Rev E have been provided to the site 
boundary in accordance with details and specifications that shall previously have been 
submitted to, agreed and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

Page 51



Reason: To ensure that a safe and suitable access to the site is provided for all users, in 
accordance with Paragraphs 108/110 of the NPPF and CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy. 

 
13. No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into its intended use until 
the footpath linking the site to Pinhoe Quarry have been provided in accordance with details 
and specifications that shall previously have been submitted to, agreed and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority 
Reason: To ensure that a safe and suitable access to the site is provided for all users, in 
accordance with Paragraphs 108/110 of the NPPF and CP9 of the ECC Core Strategy. 
 
14. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction 
Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority. The statement should include details of access arrangements and timings and 
management of arrivals and departures of vehicles. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period.  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity 

 
15. Prior to commencement of the development, details shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority of secure cycle parking provision for the development. Development shall 
not be commenced until such details have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and prior to occupation the cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the 
submitted details.  
Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are made available for cycle provision. 
 
16. Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, a travel pack shall be provided 
informing all residents of walking and cycling routes and facilities, public transport facilities 
including bus stops, rail stations and timetables, car sharing schemes and car clubs, as 
appropriate, the form and content of which shall have previously been approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure that all occupants of the development are aware of the available 
sustainable travel options. 
 
17. The north-east access to be used solely for emergency access and for no other purpose. 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring occupants.   
 
18. Pre-Commencement Condition: Before commencement of construction of the 
development hereby permitted, the applicant shall submit a technical report in the form of a 
predicated Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) and Predicated Energy Assessment (SAP) 
in line with Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) 2012 which demonstrates a net zero 
carbon emissions. The measures necessary to achieve this shall thereafter be implemented 
on site and within 3 months of practical completion of any dwelling the developer will submit 
a report to the LPA from a suitably qualified consultant to demonstrate compliance with this 
condition. 
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development and to ensure that the development 
accords with Core Strategy Policy CP15. 
 
19. Pre-Commencement condition - No part of the development hereby permitted shall be 
commenced until the detailed design of the proposed permanent surface water drainage 
management system has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The 
design of this permanent surface water drainage management system will be in accordance 
with the principles of sustainable drainage systems. No part of the development shall be 
occupied until the surface water management scheme serving that part of the development 
has been provided in accordance with the approved details and the drainage infrastructure 
shall be retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development. 

Page 52



Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in 
accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems. 
 
20. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed 
design of the proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the 
development site for the full period of its construction has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the 
Lead Local Flood Authority. This temporary surface water drainage management system 
must satisfactorily address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface water 
runoff from the construction site. 
Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is appropriately 
managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water quality issues, to the 
surrounding area. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1. In accordance with paragraphs 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council 
has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant and has negotiated 
amendments to the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 
 
2. A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relates 
to this planning permission. 
 
3. The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL (Community 
Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following commencement of 
development.  A Liability Notice is attached to this permission. 
 
It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable development is commenced before 
the Local Authority has received a valid commencement notice (ie where pre-
commencement conditions have not been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a 
surcharge, and the ability to claim any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be 
foregone.  You must apply for any relief and receive confirmation from the Council before 
commencing development.  For further information please see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/cil


This page is intentionally left blank



GENERAL NOTES

· This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other relevant Architect's,

Engineers & Specialist drawings, details and the relevant Health and Safety

Plan (as appropriate).

· Do not scale from this drawing. Use figured dimensions only.

· Site centered approximately on Ordnance Survey National Grid reference

295860.000E, 94696.000N

- 02.11.2018 Issued for information JL WP

A 02.05.2019 Boundary amended JPL WP

B 23.05.2019 OS location added to General Notes DR WP

This drawing is the copyr ight of  Trace Design and must not be copied,

reproduced or  submitted to other  par t ies without their  permission.

© Copyright

Drawing Status

Project

Drawing

Rev Date Description Drawn Check

Ground Floor

3 Silverdown Office Park

Fair Oak Close

Clyst Honiton

Exeter, Devon

EX5 2UX

PRELIMINARY

Project No.

Scale @ A1

Drawing No.

Revision

18030

001

B

Pulling Road,

Pinhoe

Site Location Plan

1:1250

Planning application boundary

KEY

Existing watercourse

P
age 55

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CHURCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
St Michael's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Cross

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
96.48m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Beacon House

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
89.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
BM 96.15m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
War

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
93.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
BM 88.16m

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
CHURCH CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
97.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CHURCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Riding School

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Clay Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
93.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
CHURCH HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
PARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
50a

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Woolsgrove

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Woolsgrove

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
BM 85.09m

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Allwynds

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Panorama

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Foxways

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Home Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
BINDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Clay Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Clay Pit

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Sandpiper Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
HARRINGTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
CHEYNE RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
CHANCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Chancel Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Chancel Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
PUCKRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
PULLING

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
MATTHEWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Harrington

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
Conveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Conveyor

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
BM 46.57m

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
BICKLEIGH CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
BICKLEIGH

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
BOURN RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
HARRINGCOURT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
CHURCH HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
64.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
HARRINGCOURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
HARRINGTON LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
DE LA RUE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
BRADFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
REYNOLDS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
America Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Sanders End

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
America

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
DE LA RUE WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
LANDS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
SANDERS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
Church Aided

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
HARRINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
Combined

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
Pinhoe St Michaels

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
Playing Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
18b

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
48.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
The Retreat

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
OAK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
Boro Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
CHURCH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
CHURCH HILL



T
his page is intentionally left blank



COMMITTEE DATE: 27 April 2020 
 

APPLICATION NO  19/1767/FUL 
 
APPLICANT Mr and Mrs Wyn Davies 
 
LOCATION   Quay Gardens, Monmouth Avenue, Topsham, Exeter.  
 
PROPOSAL Construction of a detached 2 bedroom house with an integral 

garage. 
 
REGISTRATION DATE 17 December 2019 
 
RELATED DOCUMENTS  http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q
2NXTAHBMXK00 

 
HISTORY OF SITE 
 
Quay Garden House was granted permission in 2000 (ref. 99/1019/LBC & 99/1018/FUL) for 
extensions, construction of dormers and internal alterations. Further internal alterations received 
permission under references 15/1292/LBC and 16/0455/LBC. 
 
The summer house which currently occupies the site of the proposed dwelling, on the north east 
boundary, was permitted under application ref 11/0159/FUL. 
 
In 2015, planning permission was granted on appeal for the separation of the barn annex from 
Quay Gardens to create two separate dwellings, with associated garden and parking (ref. 
15/0377/FUL & 15/0378/LBC). 
 
In 2019, permission was refused for the construction of a detached 3 bedroom house, with an 
integral garage, located within the northern half of the site (ref. 19/1102/FUL). The 
accommodation is proposed to be split over two storeys. Permission was refused as the 
proposal was considered to be visually incongruous and detrimental to the character of the 
area; as a result of its height, scale, massing and form result in an overbearing impact that 
would harm to the setting of the Grade II listed Quay Gardens and Quay Gardens Barn; and the 
design and scale of the proposed development would neither preserve or enhance the character 
and appearance of the Topsham Conservation Area. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
The site comprises of two grade II listed properties located within the Topsham Conservation 
Area. The properties are situated within large well-landscaped grounds, and have a high degree 
of privacy. 
 
The two dwellings, Quay Gardens and Quay Gardens Barn are located to the southwest corner 
of the site and are currently under the same ownership. The land to the north of the properties 
comprises a large garden serving the dwellings and a single storey art studio to the northwest 
boundary. To the northern boundary is a steep embankment which leads down onto Holman 
Way. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7

http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q2NXTAHBMXK00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q2NXTAHBMXK00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q2NXTAHBMXK00


 
Quay Gardens is a two storey detached dwelling which retains its C17th façade.  
Quay Gardens Barn is a C17th barn constructed of cob, brick and stone with slate roof. It is a 
separately listed Grade II Listed Building and was granted permission as a separate dwelling as 
a result of an upheld appeal, ref. 15/0377/FUL. A secondary point of access to Quay Gardens is 
gained via a pedestrian right of way across the garden of the neighbouring property No.4 Amity 
Place. 
 
This application seeks permission for the construction of a detached two bedroom property. The 
main living areas of the property are contained within a two storey section, with two ensuite 
bedrooms on the ground floor and an open plan living space at the first floor with balcony to the 
southwest elevation and a sedum roof. Attached to the property is a single storey double garage 
with mono pitched roof. The property is proposed to be finished in a mix of timber cladding, 
stone and brick, with a section of vertical planting on the southeast elevation. The property will 
also feature large sections of glazing to the southwest elevation. To the south west of the 
property is a private amenity space for this property, bounded by a new hedge.  
 
The property will utilise the existing access lane from Monmouth Avenue, which the site has 
right of access over. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 

 Design and access statement 

 Archaeology and Heritage statement 

 Aboricultural statement (including tree protection plan)  
o The first assessment was superseded, with a revised assessment to include the 

retention of trees to the northern boundary of the site. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
1 letter of support. The letter of support considered that the proposal was suitable for the site 
and was considered to enhance the area. 
 
1 letter of representation. The letter of representation considered that building on this land is 
not appropriate and should be retained for use for growing crops. It was noted that there was 
disagreement with the historical impact assessment with regards the impact on the historic 
buildings. 
 
12 letter of objection, including the Topsham Society. The comments raised in the objections 
are summarised below -: 
 

 Detrimental impact on the wider conservation area; 

 Proposal does not address the detrimental impact on the heritage assets; 

 Due to the elevated position next to Holman Way, the dwelling would be a dominant 
feature within the conservation area; 

 Inappropriate access; 

 Detrimental impact of increased traffic; 

 Proximity of property to eastern boundary and loss of laurel hedge; 

 Felling of mature trees; 

 Impact during construction; 

Page 58



 Impact of the repositioning of the summer house; 

 Design out of keeping with the properties within the area; 

 Overdevelopment of the site. 
 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
The Highways (Devon County Council) officer raises no objection in principle and the 
development could proceed in accordance with the County’s standing advice. 
 
The Environmental Health (Exeter City Council) officer has recommended a condition 
regarding the construction and demolition hours in the interest of residential amenity. An 
informative was also requested regarding controlling emissions and health impacts from wood 
burners. 
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) 
12. Achieving well designed places 
16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
Section 72 of Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) 1990 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2012) 
 
Objective 8  

'Protect and enhance the city's unique historic character and townscape, its 
archaeological heritage, its natural setting that is provided by valley parks and the hills to 
the north and west, and its biodiversity and geological assets' 

Objective 9  
'Create and reinforce local distinctiveness and raise the quality of urban living through 
excellence in design.' 

CP17 Design and local distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 
 
AP1 Design and location of development 
AP2 Sequential approach 
H1 Housing land search sequence 
H2 Housing location priorities 
T1 Hierarchy of modes of transport 
T2 Accessibility criteria 
T3 Encouraging sustainable use of transport 
T10 Car parking standards 
C1 Conservation areas 
C5 Archaeology 
C2 Listed buildings 
DG1 Objectives of urban design 

'Development should: 

Page 59



(f) be of a height which is appropriate to the surrounding townscape and ensure that the 
height of constituent  parts of buildings relate well to adjoining buildings, spaces and to 
human scale; 
(g) ensure that the volume and shape (the massing) of structures relates well to the 
character and appearance of the adjoining buildings and the surrounding townscape; 
(h) ensure that all designs promote local distinctiveness and contribute positively to the 
visual richness and amenity of the townscape.' 

DG2 Energy conservation 
DG4 Residential layout and amenity 
 
 
Exeter City Council Development Delivery DPD (Publication Version) 2015 
This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted and does not form 
part of the management plan 
 
DD13 Residential amenity 
DD20 Sustainable movement 
DD21 Parking 
DD25 Design principles 
DD28 Heritage assets 
 
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Document 
Residential Design Guide SPD 2010 
 
Conservation area appraisal management plans 
Topsham 2009 
 
 
OBSERVATIONS 
 
As with the previous application for the site (19/1102/FUL), the principal issues regarding this 
application are; the principle of development; scale and massing; impact on the setting of the 
heritage assets; access and trees. 
 
Principle of development 
 
In accordance with Objectives 8 and 9, Policy CP17 of the Core Strategy and Policies AP1 and 
H1 of the Exeter Local Plan First Review, development should be designed and located to raise 
the quality of the urban and natural environment, with housing development located towards 
previously developed land, conversion and infill within the urban area. Residential development 
should be at the highest achievable density without detriment to local amenity, the quality of the 
local environment and the safety of local roads.  
In line with these policies, the introduction of an additional dwelling at this site is considered 
potentially acceptable. Infill development represents an important contribution to housing supply 
within the city. Due to the property’s location, the scale, design and the impact on both the 
setting of the listed buildings and the Topsham Conservation Area, require specific assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



Scale, massing and impact on heritage assets 
 
Local Planning Authorities have a duty within Section 72 of Planning (Listed Building and 
Conservation Area) 1990 which requires special attention to the desirability of preserving of 
enhancing the character or appearance of listed buildings and conservation areas. Furthermore, 
in line with the NPPF (specifically paras. 193-196), it must be assessed whether the proposal 
will cause harm to the heritage asset, including its setting and the ability to appreciate the 
significance of that asset, and whether that harm would be significantly offset by any public 
benefit accruing from the proposal. Whilst the location of the proposed dwelling is such that it is 
not particularly visible from the public highway, the lack of external public views into the 
development site and into the private garden of Quay Gardens, is not a factor when assessing 
the setting of a listed building and the degree of harm, and acceptability thereof, that a 
development would cause. The design of the proposed development therefore needs careful 
consideration.  
 
The introduction of contemporary architectural solutions rather than copies of the historic form is 
encouraged, and creates a clear contrast between the old and new rather than pastiche 
designs. Design should have clear sensitivity to its context, which in this case includes the 
impact on the setting of the listed buildings and the Topsham Conservation Area.  
 
The existing layout of the site, with the main house to the southwest boundary, the barn beyond 
to the west boundary and the open spacious garden to the north is such that the main house 
remains the dominant feature within the site. Furthermore, the main house holds a prominent 
position in relation to the access lane and as such these are important to the setting of the listed 
house and barn. Additional development, in the form of the summer house, has been introduced 
to the site without harm to the setting. It is considered that this is a result of the clear 
subservience of the building, as a result of its single storey form, the introduction of softer 
materials through the wood and the set back from the entrance. Following the site visit, it was 
concluded that the proposed footprint for the dwelling was of an acceptable size in relation to 
the plot. In the previous application it was argued that the massing of the two storey dwelling 
and flat roof was visually incongruous and had an overbearing appearance on the main 
dwelling.  
 
To address this impact this application has removed the two storey section of the build over the 
garage, keeping this to a single storey level. It is considered that this alteration significantly 
reduces the massing of the proposed dwelling and reduces the competition and overbearing 
impact on the main dwelling, allowing Quay Gardens to remain the dominant feature within the 
site. 
 
In addition the second storey section over the garage was considered to have an overbearing 
impact on the adjoining property, Oxford Orchards, by reducing this section to a single storey, 
this impact is ameliorated. 
 
The introduction of planting to the two storey section of the south east elevation, is considered 
to soften the appearance of this elevation and appropriate to the setting. 
As a result of these changes it is considered that the impact on the setting of the listed building, 
particularly the overbearing impact on entrance to the site has been significantly reduced. 
 
Concern has been raised regarding the height of the proposed dwelling in relation to the wider 
conservation area, particularly the historic quay area as a result of its elevated position. It is 
considered that as a result of the vegetation screening, the existing buildings and the distance 

Page 61



between the proposed dwelling and the historic quay, views of the proposed dwelling from this 
position would be limited and therefore the level of harm would be limited. 
 
It is considered the modifications made to the proposed dwelling following the previous refusal 
(19/1102/FUL) regarding the scale and massing in relation to the heritage assets has been 
addressed within this application and therefore is compliant with Objective 8, Policy CP17 of the 
Core Strategy, Policies C1 and C2 of the Exeter Plan and Policy DD28 of the Development 
Delivery DPD.  
 
It is considered that there is the potential for buried remains at the site, as noted in the 
applicant’s heritage statement. This is due to the favourable topographic location of this site (on 
SW facing level land overlooking the estuary) for prehistoric and later remains, and that it is 
located directly to the rear of the main medieval and later quay area of Topsham, within the 
same property as two buildings of 17C origin. To mitigate any potential impacts, a condition is 
recommended to secure a programme of archaeological work.  
 
Trees and landscaping 
 
The Topsham Conservation Area Appraisal raises a number of issues that are considered to 
negatively impact the conservation area, which includes the retention and care of mature trees. 
Development should be designed to ensure trees flourish and mature, with development 
arranged to a good spatial relationship between trees and development, to allow trees and 
planting to be retained. This application initially proposed to remove two trees on the northern 
boundary to facilitate this development, the removal of a tree within the centre of the site and 
two apple trees to the southwest corner of the site.  
 
Following discussion with the Council’s Arboricultural Officer, a revised arboricultural 
assessment and tree protection plan were submitted to ensure that the two trees on the 
northern boundary were retained. In addition the tree to be removed in the centre of the site (T3) 
will be replaced by appropriate native trees. With regards the remaining trees to be removed 
(two apple trees and one cryptomeria), although it is preferable where possible to retain and 
protect trees of good arboricultural and amenity value, where the value is lower the council 
supports the planting of native trees, as proposed as part of this application. A condition will be 
applied to any consent granted to ensure compliance with the arboricultural assessment and the 
provision of a detailed landscaping scheme will be conditioned to ensure the trees are replace 
with appropriate species.   
 
The initial scheme proposed the installation of a standard timber fence to create the boundary 
for the new dwelling. It was considered that this was a relatively harsh boundary treatment for its 
setting, it was negotiated for this to be replaced with a softer boundary in the form of a new 
hedge line, more appropriate to its setting. In addition the laurel hedge, currently present on the 
eastern boundary is also considered an important element of soft landscaping and it has 
therefore been negotiated that this be retained. This laurel hedge is considered important 
screening to the site, and the loss of this hedge was of concern to an objector. To ensure 
appropriate landscaping and the retention of the soft landscaping on the eastern boundary, any 
consent granted will require the submission of a detailed landscaping scheme, including a 
planting scheme. 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



Materials 
 
In line with Policy DG1 (i) of the Local Plan, developers are encouraged to use materials which 
are traditionally used within the area in conjunction with glass, timber and steel to create 
contemporary solutions appropriate to its setting. It is considered that the proposed mix of 
materials, including timber cladding, stone and brick is acceptable for its setting. A condition 
could be attached to any consent granted to ensure a high quality finish and the maintenance of 
the planting on the southeast elevation.  
 
Access 
 
Objectors, as with the previous application (19/1102/FUL) have raised concerns regarding the 
increased pressure on the access lane as a result of the additional dwelling. The applicant has 
confirmed right of access along the private lane off Monmouth Avenue. In line with Devon 
County Council’s standing advice for determination of planning applications, the existing private 
access drive achieves the minimum width of 3 metres and is widened at the bends as 
appropriate. As the access lane exceeds 25 metres in length (approximately 98.4 metres), it is 
considered that there is adequate provision for passing places within the lane. There is also 
sufficient space within the site to for the turning of vehicles. 
 
Although the visibility of the existing entrance/exit point onto Monmouth Avenue, as an existing 
arrangement it is not considered that this constitutes a reason for refusal. The secondary 
pedestrian access via the right of way over the garden of 4 Amity Place is proposed to be 
retained for the use of the occupiers of Quay Gardens Barn as per the existing arrangement and 
will not be opened up for use for Quay Gardens or the new dwelling. 
 
Overlooking and loss of privacy to adjoining properties  
 
A minimum distance of 22 metres is recommended to prevent overlooking and feelings of being 
hemmed in. The properties to the west are located approximately 24 metres from the proposed 
dwelling and the distance to the garden boundary to the north is approximately 27 metres, and 
is therefore considered compliant with Policy DG4 of the Local Plan. The distance to 
neighbouring properties is also such that it loss of light and shadowing would not be a significant 
issue.  
 
Habitats Mitigation  
 
This development has been screened in respect of the need for an Appropriate Assessment 
(AA) and given the nature and scale of the development it has been concluded that an AA is 
required. This AA has been carried out, and concludes that the development could have an 
impact, primarily arising from the recreational activity of future occupants of the development. If 
approved, this impact must be mitigated in line with the South-east Devon European Site 
Mitigation Strategy prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge 
District Councils and Exeter City Council, which is being funded through a proportion of the CIL 
collected in respect of the development being allocated to funding the mitigation strategy.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The principle of development, within an established residential area, is considered to be 
acceptable. It is considered that in comparison to the previously refused application 
(19/1102/FUL) there has been a significant reduction in the scale and massing of the proposed 

Page 63



development to reduce the impact of the proposed development on the setting of the Grade II 
listed Quay Gardens and Quay Gardens Barn. In addition there has been effective engagement 
to ensure the protection of the mature trees, important to the conservation area and to achieve 
greater soft landscaping. As such the proposal is considered to be compliant with to Objectives 
8 and 9 and Policy CP17 of the Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy and 
Policies C1, C2, DG1 (f), (g), (h) of the Exeter Local Plan First Review and Policies DD25, DD28 
of the Development Delivery DPD. Officer recommendation is therefore for approval. 
 
DELEGATION BRIEFING – 7 APRIL 2020 
 
Members were presented with the application, the application site is located within the Topsham 
Conservation Area and within the curtilage of the listed buildings, Quay Garden and Quay 
Gardens Barn. Quay Gardens Barn was granted permission on appeal for use as a separate 
dwelling. In 2019, permission was refused for a detached 3 bedroom house with integrated 
garage. Permission was refused due to its incongruous impact on the listed buildings as a result 
of its scale massing and form. 
 
It was confirmed that 12 letters of objection, 1 letter of support and 1 letter of representation had 
been received. Objectors raised concerns regarding the impact to the listed building, the impact 
on the conservation area, inappropriate design and the over development at the location. As 
well as the loss of mature trees and inappropriate access. 
 
This application has removed the two storey section of the build over the garage which featured 
in the previous application, keeping this to a single storey level. It is considered that this 
alteration significantly reduces the massing of the proposed dwelling and reduces the 
competition and overbearing impact on the main dwelling, allowing Quay Gardens to remain the 
dominant feature within the site. The property occupies the same footprint as the previously 
refused application. 
 
It was confirmed that the removal of the trees adjoining Holman Way had been revised and 
would now be retained. The application had also been revised to alter the property boundary 
from a timber fence to a hedge, the introduction of planting to the south east elevation wall and 
retention of the laurel hedge on the eastern boundary. The officer considered the application to 
be much improved and recommended approval with conditions. 
 
Members commented on the application and considered taking the application to the Planning 
Committee for more input from Members. Members decided to refer the application to the 
Planning Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVE with conditions 
 

CONDITIONS 
 
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration 
of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted. 
 
Reason:  To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 

Page 64



2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 
accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on  17 
December 2019 (including dwg. nos. 19/003/31 Rev A; 19/003/32 Rev A; 19/003/33 Rev A; 
19/003/35 Rev A; 19/003/36 Rev A received on 05 March 2020; 19/003/34 Rev B Received on 
01 April 2020; 19/003/30 Rev B Received on 08 April 2020) as modified by other conditions of 
this consent. 
 
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings. 
 
3) No site machinery or plant shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and no 
demolition or construction related deliveries received or dispatched from the site except 
between the hours of 8 am to 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm Saturday and at no time on 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working 
nearby. 
 
4) Samples of the materials it is intended to use externally in the construction of the 
development (including the natural stone cladding; cedar cladding; bricks and roof membrane) 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No external finishing material shall be used 
until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter 
the materials used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the approved 
samples in all respects. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity requirements of the area. 
 
5) Pre-commencement condition: No materials shall be brought onto the site or any 
development commenced, until the developer has erected tree protective fencing around all 
trees or shrubs to be retained, in accordance with a plan that shall previously have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall be 
produced in accordance with BS 5837:2012 - Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and 
construction. The developer shall maintain such fences to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority until all development the subject of this permission is completed. The level of the land 
within the fenced areas shall not be altered without the prior written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority. No materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for 
service runs or any other excavations take place within the fenced area except by written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such permission is granted, soil shall be 
removed manually, without powered equipment. 
 
Reason for pre-commencement condition - To ensure the protection of the trees during the 
carrying out of the development. This information is required before development commences to 
protect trees during all stages of the construction process. 
 
6) A detailed scheme for landscaping, including the planting of trees and or shrubs, the planting 
to the southeast elevation, the use of surface materials and boundary screen walls and fences 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and no dwelling or building shall be occupied 
until the Local Planning Authority have approved a scheme;  such scheme shall specify 
materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and planting densities, and any earthworks 
required together with the timing of the implementation of the scheme.  The landscaping shall 
thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme in accordance with the 
agreed programme. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of 

Page 65



the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced 
in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects and 
in the interests of amenity. 

7) Pre commencement condition: No development related works shall take place within the site 
until a written scheme of archaeological work has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include on-site work, and off site work such as 
the analysis, publication, and archiving of the results, together with a timetable for completion of 
each element. All works shall be carried out and completed in accordance with the approved 
scheme, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure the appropriate identification, recording 
and publication of archaeological and historic remains affected by the development. This 
information is required before development commences to ensure that historic remains are not 
damaged during the construction process 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
1) In accordance with Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council has 
worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant and has negotiated amendments to 
the application to enable the grant of planning permission. 
 
2) In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect of the need for an 
Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the development, it has been concluded that 
an AA is required in relation to potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Areas (SPA), 
the Exe Estuary and East Devon Pebblebed Heaths, which are designated European sites. This 
AA has been carried out and concludes that the development is such that it could have an 
impact primarily associated with recreational activity of future occupants of the development. 
This impact will be mitigated in line with the South East Devon European Site Mitigation 
Strategy prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge District 
Councils and Exeter City Council (with particular reference to Table 26), which is being funded 
through a proportion of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the 
development being allocated to fund the mitigation strategy. Or, if the development is not liable 
to pay CIL, to pay the appropriate habitats mitigation contribution through another mechanism 
(this is likely to be either an undertaking in accordance with s111 of the Local Government Act 
1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking). 
 
3) Advice on controlling the emissions from and health impacts of wood burning is available 
from https://uk-
air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/reports/cat09/1901291307_Ready_to_Burn_Web.pdf. It is 
recommended that all new stoves meet the EcoDesign Ready standard. 
In addition, careful design of the flue may be required in order to prevent the appliance causing 
a nuisance by fume or odours. 
For further advice, please contact the Environmental Protection Unit on 01392 265148. 
 

Page 66



4) The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL (Community 
Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following commencement of development. 
Accordingly your attention is drawn to the need to complete and submit an 'Assumption of 
Liability' notice to the Local Planning Authority as soon as possible. A copy is available on the 
Exeter City Council website. 
It is also drawn to your attention that where a chargeable development is commenced before 
the Local Authority has received a valid commencement notice (ie where pre-commencement 
conditions have not been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a surcharge, and the 
ability to claim any form of relief from the payment of the Levy will be foregone.  You must apply 
for any relief and receive confirmation from the Council before commencing development.  For 
further information please see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil. 
 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



SCALE 1:1250

1
0

m

2
0

m

3
0

m

4
0

m

5
0

m

.

Quay gardens,

Topsham,

Exeter

Site Location Plan

1:1250

Planning

Mar 2019

JJ

19003.SLP

ProjectDrawingStatus

Scale

Date Drwg No

Drawn

armada house

odhams wharf

topsham

exeter

EX3 OPB

01392 877 990

www.tfqarchitects.co.uk

design@tfqarchitects.co.uk

C
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

Rev

@A4

site location plan   1:1250

Page 69

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Raleigh

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Quay

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
Oxford Orchard

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
16b

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
HOLMAN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
Quay Gardens



This page is intentionally left blank



       COMMITTEE DATE: 27 April 2020 

APPLICATION NO  20/0013/FUL 
 
APPLICANT Mr Michael O’Sullivan    
 
LOCATION 37 Argyll Road, Exeter, EX4 4RX 
 
PROPOSAL Change of use from 6 person HMO (C4) to 7 person HMO (Sui 

Generis) and single storey rear extension 
 
REGISTRATION DATE 6 January 2020 
 
RELATED DOCUMENTS  http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-

applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVa
l=Q3QQIRHB01A00 

 
HISTORY OF SITE 
 
The application address has no, relevant planning history.  
 
DESCRIPTION OF SITE/PROPOSAL 
 
The application address is a detached dwelling located on Argyll Road, north west of 
Pennsylvania Road and within the Duryard and St James ward. The property’s existing use 
is as a 6-person HMO (Use Class C4) with student tenants.  
 
The proposal comprises of two key elements including a change of use from a 6-person 
HM0 (Use Class C4) to a 7 person HMO (Use Class Sui Generis) and a single-storey rear 
extension. The change of use would require internal alterations in providing an additional 
bedroom, which would be achieved through the sub-division of an existing bedroom into 2 
bedrooms (bedrooms 3 and 4). The proposed bedrooms would be located on the first floor of 
the property, and have total floor spaces of 9.8m² (bedroom 3) and 7.4m² (bedroom 4). The 
proposed rear extension would be 5m in depth and 6.55m in width, with an external finish of 
render to match and is to increase the living space for occupants.  
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION SUPPLIED BY THE APPLICANT 
 
Supporting Statement 
Management Statement 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
2 objections were received. Principal issues raised as follows:- 

1. The application would result in a disproportionate number of multi-occupancy 
dwellings.  

2. An additional occupant would negatively impact the amenity of the area, both visually 
and through noise/anti-social behaviour. 

3. The septic tank/drainage at the address is designed for a 4 person household.  
4. Additional occupants may result in more on-street parking causing further issues to 

movement for residents, deliveries and emergency services.  
5. Parking issues with refuse lorry already unable to reach no.37 due to congestion on 

the road.  
6. The proposal will have a negative impact on the Duryard valley park including to 

wildlife through noise, lighting and waste.  

Page 71

Agenda Item 8

http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q3QQIRHB01A00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q3QQIRHB01A00
http://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q3QQIRHB01A00


CONSULTATIONS 
 
Environmental Health raise no objection: 
 
The address has no record of noise or anti-social behaviour complaints.  
 
Environmental Health (Licensing) raise no objection:  
 
The proposed layout was agreed by licensing who are happy with the internal arrangement. 
Confirmed that the additional bedroom/occupant would be acceptable by keeping the 
existing, ground floor layout and sub-dividing the upstairs bedroom without the inclusion of 
the extension.   
 
South West Water:   
 
Made no comments on the application in regard to drainage.  
 
PLANNING POLICIES/POLICY GUIDANCE 
 
Central Government Guidance - National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 
 
2. Achieving sustainable development 
8. Promoting healthy and safe communities 
9. Promoting sustainable transport 
11. Making effective use of land 
12. Achieving well-designed places 
 
Technical housing standards - nationally described minimum space standard (2015) 
 
Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012) 
 
CP4 Housing density 
CP5 Meeting housing needs 
CP17 Design and local distinctiveness 
 
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005) 
 
H5 Diversity of housing 
T1 Hierarchy of modes of transport 
T3 Encouraging use of sustainable modes of transport 
LS1 Landscape setting 
DG1 Objectives of urban design 
DG4 Residential layout and amenity 
 
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version 2015) 
 
DD1 Sustainable Development 
DD10 Loss of Residential Accommodation 
DD11 Residential Conversions and HMOs 
DD13 Residential Amenity 
DD20 Sustainable Movement 
DD21 Parking 
DD29 Landscape Setting Areas 

 

Page 72



Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents 

Houses in Multiple Occupation (Including Class C4 Uses) – 2014 

Householders Guide to Extension Design (2008) 

OBSERVATIONS 

The application address is located within the Duryard and St James ward of Exeter, which 

has a higher proportion of student accommodation to other areas of the City. The proposal 

site is not within the area of this ward which is subject to an article 4 direction and therefore, 

the law requires planning decisions for a change of use to be made in accordance with 

development plan policies (HMO SPD).  

The relevant policies for consideration in regard to a change of use from a 6 person HMO 

(Use Class C4) to a 7 person HMO (Use Class Sui Generis) are CP4 and CP5 of the Core 

Strategy, H5 of the Local Plan and DD10 and DD11 of the Development Plan Document. In 

summary, these policies state that conversion to HMOs will be permitted providing the 

change of use would not result in an over concentration of the use in any one area and the 

proposal would not result in unacceptable harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents.  

Both objections from neighbours raised concern that the proposal would result in an 

overconcentration of HMOs on Argyll Road with one objector stating that, including no.37, 

there are 6 HMO properties on the street. With approximately 74 properties on Argyll Road, 

6 HMOs would total around 8% of overall housing on the street. As no.37 is already under a 

C4 use, the overall balance between residential properties and HMOs on Argyll Road would 

remain unchanged as a result of the proposal. Argyll Road has also not been included in the 

area under Article 4 direction as it is not considered a road that is at risk from an imbalance 

of HMOs.  

The two objections also raised issues of neighbour amenity including being disturbed by 

noise at night. Whilst individual instances are unfortunate, there is no record of anti-social 

behaviour or noise complaints at the address (to either Planning or Environmental Health) 

and neither adjoining neighbour has commented on the proposal. Weight should also be 

given to the fact the property currently has 6 occupants and that an additional occupant is 

unlikely to increase the scale or intensity of the existing usage to a degree which would lead 

to an unacceptable reduction in neighbouring amenity. Neighbouring amenity is also 

protected under a clause in the tenancy agreement which is set out in the Management 

Statement and requires tenants to ‘not do anything to or on the property that: causes a 

nuisance or annoyance to occupiers of adjoining or neighbouring properties’.  

Neighbour objections also raised concern over on-street parking. The property currently has 

sufficient parking space for 4 cars and as the tenants are students and the property is within 

relatively close proximity of the campus with reasonable sustainable transport links, not each 

occupant is reported to have a car. To support this, the applicant has submitted a revised 

block plan which demonstrates parking at the property. To ensure that issues regarding on-

street parking do not arise as a result of an additional occupant, the applicant has specified 

in the Management Statement that only 3 occupants will be allowed to bring a car as part of 

their tenancy agreement. This will come into place as a result of the change of use as 

currently, the tenants have no such restriction. Details of secure cycle storage (a lockable 

garage), with space for approximately 8 bikes, has also been included on the revised Block 

Plan.  

In terms of amenity for occupants, Environmental Health (Licensing) were consulted over the 

proposed layout and were happy with the arrangement. The property, without the proposed 

Page 73



extension, exceeds nationally described minimum space standards for the proposed number 

of occupants and therefore, the extension is of additional benefit to tenants and not being 

constructed out of necessity for space. To ensure future occupants benefit from this 

extension, its construction will be ensured through condition and will be required to be built 

prior to implementing the change of use.  

The extension itself does exceed the recommended depth set out in the Householder guide 

SPD but largely complies with the rest of the guidance. Considering the size of the plot, the 

original dwelling and the garden space that would be retained, an extension of this size is 

considered acceptable. Whilst a flat roof design is considered to be uninspired, it would 

unlikely cause harm to the appearance of the dwelling or the character of the townscape and 

therefore would not warrant refusal. The external finish of the proposal would be render to 

match which is supported. 

The proposed rear extension would have an overall height of 4m as a result of the sloping 

garden. However, as it will be built on a brick plinth, its height from ground level will be closer 

to 2.8m. The extension sits closest to the adjoining boundary shared with no.39 but would be 

set away by over 2m and screened by an established, dividing hedge. As well as this 

separation, the elevation which faces onto the neighbouring boundary would only have high 

level windows to reduce privacy issues. As a result, the proposal is considered to comply 

with policy which makes reference to design, amenity and layout, specifically policies DG1 

and DG4.  

One objection makes reference to the dwelling being located in relatively close proximity to 

the valley park and note concern that development may have a negative impact on wildlife. 

As the proposal is for a householder extension and is a significant distance from the local 

designation, it is considered to be of minimal risk of causing harm and therefore compliant 

with policies LS1 and DD29.  

An objection also noted that proposal address has a septic tank designed for a 4 person 

home and that there is concern the drains are not sufficient for this increase in occupants. 

South West Water made no comment on the application in regard to drainage and if the 

septic tank is of inadequate size/function and creates problems, this is better addressed 

through legislation outside the remit of planning control.  

Reference was made to other, purpose-built student accommodation in the ward and 

surrounding area. Whilst noted, this is not of direct relevance to this application and can only 

be afforded minimal weight in determining whether a change of use at the property is 

acceptable.  

In summary, it is considered the proposal would not create an imbalanced community 

outweighed by HMOs or that the addition of 1 occupant would be of significant harm to 

neighbouring properties either through noise, parking or any other factor. The internal layout 

and quality of life for occupants is considered acceptable by licensing standards and the 

extension is deemed acceptable when assessed against design policy. Accordingly it is 

recommended the planning application is approved subject to the conditions set out below. 

 

 

  

 

Page 74



DELEGATION BRIEFING 

07 April 2020 – Members raised concern over the concentration of student accommodation 

in the area and referred to a comment from the University of Exeter Student Liaison Officer 

who stated that larger HMOs tended to be more problematic to manage since they were 

more likely to attract occupants from multiple groups rather than a single friendship group 

and would fail to take responsibility for refuse collection. Other Members had also 

commented by email objecting to the application referring to evidence from the University, 

which stated there was a relationship between anti-social behaviour and the size of HMO's. 

Also, with ordinary houses increasing in size to fit extra students, the chance of properties 

ever being changed back into use by ordinary families was reduced with the number of 

students in Duryard & St James already being excessive. 

RECOMMENDATION 

APPROVE with the following conditions: 
 
Planning application 20/0013/FUL 
 
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted. 
Reason:  To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict 

accordance with the approved details received by the Local Planning Authority on 14 April 

2020 (including dwgs. REVISED Block Plan, REVISED Ground Floor Layout and REVISED 

First Floor Layout) and 15 April 2020 (Management Statement). 

Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings and in adherence with 

policies CP4, CP5, DG1, DG4 and H5. 

3) Prior to occupation of the House in Multiple Occupation hereby approved, the extension 

shall be constructed and completed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure the future occupiers have an appropriately sized living space and a good 

quality of residential amenity in compliance with policies with CP4, H5 and DG4.  

4) No site machinery or plant shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and no 

demolition or construction related deliveries received or dispatched from the site except 

between the hours of 8 am to 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm Saturday and at no time 

on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working 

nearby. 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Date of Meeting: 27 April 2020 
Report of:  Director 
Title:   Delegated Decisions 
 

1 WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT 
 

1.1 This report lists planning applications determined and applications that have been 
withdrawn between the date of finalising the agenda of the last Planning Committee 
and the date of finalising this agenda. Applications are listed by Ward. 
 

2 
 

2.1 
 
 
 

2.2 
 
3 
 

3.1 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Members are requested to advise the Assistant City Development Manager Planning 
(Roger Clotworthy) or City Development Manager (Andy Robbins) of any questions 
on the schedule prior to Planning Committee meeting. 
 

Members are asked to note the report. 
 
PLANNING APPLICATION CODES 
 
The latter part of the application reference number indicates the type of application: 
 

OUT Outline Planning Permission 
RES Approval of Reserved Matters 
FUL Full Planning Permission 
TPO Works to Tree(s) with Preservation Order 
ADV Advertisement Consent 
CAT Works to Tree(s) in Conservation Area 
LBC Listed Building Consent 
ECC Exeter City Council Regulation 3 
LED Lawfulness of Existing Use/Development 
LPD Certificate of Proposed Use/Development 
TEL Telecommunication Apparatus Determination 
CMA County Matter Application 
CTY Devon County Council Application 
MDO Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligation Regulations 
NMA Non Material Amendment 
EXT    Extension to Extant Planning Consent 
PD Extension - Prior Approval 
PDJ  Office to Dwelling - Prior Approval 
 

3.2 The decision type uses the following codes: 
DREF  Deemed Refusal 
DTD    Declined To Determine 
NLU   Was Not Lawful Use 
PAN    Prior Approval Not Required 
PAR   Prior Approval Required 
PER Permitted 
REF Refuse Planning Permission 
RNO Raise No Objection 
ROB Raise Objections 
SPL Split Decision 
WDN Withdrawn by Applicant 
WLU Was Lawful Use 
WTD Withdrawn - Appeal against non-determination 

  
 

Bindu Arjoon  
Director 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Alphington

19/1691/FUL 19/12/2019

Permitted 13/03/2020

Delegated Decision

10 Myrtle Close Exeter Devon EX2 8UX 

Side extension with rear dormer and new rear decking

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0189/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 07/04/2020

Delegated Decision

3 Cordery Road Exeter Devon EX2 9DH 

Single storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0190/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 31/03/2020

Delegated Decision

28 Blenheim Road Exeter Devon EX2 8SE 

Single storey rear extension measuring 4m (depth) x 3.5m (max. 
height) x 2.5m (eaves height).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0192/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 18/03/2020

Delegated Decision

70 Blenheim Road Exeter Devon EX2 8SE 

Single storey rear extension measuring 4m (depth) x 3.7m (max. 
height) x 2.7m (eaves height).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Duryard And St James

19/1616/FUL 19/12/2019

Permitted 15/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Streatham Court Rennes Drive Exeter Devon EX4 4PU 

New makerspace building within the courtyard of Streatham Court 
at University of Exeter's Business School

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0022/FUL 30/01/2020

Permitted 09/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Bank To Front Of Innovation Centre On Streatham Campus 
Rennes Drive Exeter Devon EX4 4RN 

Single-storey building for educational purposes including 
lift/staircase link to main building.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

All Planning Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications 
between 05/03/2020 and 16/04/2020

Page 81



20/0071/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 08/04/2020

Delegated Decision

2 Elm Grove Road St James Exeter Devon EX4 4LL 

Replacement single storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0072/LBC 13/02/2020

Permitted 08/04/2020

Delegated Decision

2 Elm Grove Road St James Exeter Devon EX4 4LL 

Replacement single storey rear extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0176/FUL 05/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

3 Belvidere Road Exeter Devon EX4 4RU 

Single storey side extension with roof terrace over and associated 
works.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0187/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

16 St Sidwells Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6QW 

Removal of conservatory and single-skin brick extension to create 
a new kitchen/diner extension with glazed roof.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0232/FUL 19/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

16 Lower Argyll Road Exeter Devon EX4 4QY 

Alterations to front of house; single storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0234/LPD

Was lawful use 25/03/2020

Delegated Decision

5 Union Road Exeter Devon EX4 6HY 

Certificate of Lawfulness for a house of multiple occupation (HMO) 
to increase from six to seven residents (Class C4 to Sui Generis)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0290/TPO

Refuse Planning Permission 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

10 Curlew Way Exeter Devon EX4 4SW 

Monterey Pine limb removal.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 82



Exwick

20/0110/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 16/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Pine Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 2DU 

Two storey side extension (retrospective)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Heavitree

20/0024/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 30/03/2020

Delegated Decision

25 Nicholas Road Exeter Devon EX1 3AT 

Reconfigure roof and raise ridge height by 0.6m, porch and single 
storey rear extension plus various alterations to exterior material 
finishes.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0048/FUL

Withdrawn by Applicant 30/03/2020

Delegated Decision

45-47 Fore Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 2QN 

Replacement fascia sign and window display.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0074/LBC 13/02/2020

Permitted 25/03/2020

Delegated Decision

4 Bicton Place Exeter Devon EX1 2PF 

Re-roofing existing main roof

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0148/LPD

Was lawful use 31/03/2020

Delegated Decision

7 Hanover Road Exeter Devon EX1 2TB 

Loft conversion including dormer extension with rear window and 
no.2 front elevation rooflights.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0198/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 07/04/2020

Delegated Decision

6 Mont Le Grand Exeter Devon EX1 2PD 

Proposed internal alterations to basement, ground floor and first 
floor; Proposed enlarged door and window openings on rear 
elevation, with replacement doors and windows to match existing.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 83



20/0199/LBC

Permitted 07/04/2020

Delegated Decision

6 Mont Le Grand Exeter Devon EX1 2PD 

Proposed internal alterations to basement, ground floor and first 
floor; Proposed enlarged door and window openings on rear 
elevation, with replacement doors and windows to match existing.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0241/LED

Was lawful use 06/04/2020

Delegated Decision

74 Park Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HT 

Use of property as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) (Class 
C4)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0298/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 26/03/2020

Delegated Decision

15 Chard Road Exeter Devon EX1 3AY 

Single storey rear extension extending a maximum 5.4m from rear 
elevation, height to eaves 3m and max. overall height 3.7m.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0311/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 09/04/2020

Delegated Decision

40 Sweetbrier Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3AF 

Single storey rear extension extending a maximum 3.6m from rear 
elevation, height to eaves 2.6m and maximum overall height 2.8m.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Mincinglake And Whipton

20/0043/FUL 20/02/2020

Permitted 13/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Lancelot Place Lancelot Road Exeter Devon EX4 9BX 

Proposed raised deck to rear of property to provide amenity area 
for disabled person

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0175/FUL 12/03/2020

Refuse Planning Permission 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

73 Iolanthe Drive Exeter Devon EX4 9DZ 

Proposed internal space renovation, loft conversion into extra 
bedroom and ensuite. Proposed side/rear extension to provide 
dining space, accessible bedroom and bathroom, with additional 
storage.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 84



20/0182/PD

Prior Approval Required and 
Granted

08/04/2020

Delegated Decision

21 Woolsery Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 8BJ 

Single storey rear extension measuring 4m (depth) x 3.3.m 
(maximum height) x 2.25m (eaves height).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0216/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 10/03/2020

Delegated Decision

48 Bettys Mead Exeter Devon EX4 8LN 

Replacement single storey rear extension extending a maximum 
4m from rear elevation, height to eaves 2.5m and max. overall 
height 3.7m.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0328/FUL 19/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

74 Brookside Crescent Exeter Devon EX4 8NE 

Single storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Newtown And St Leonards

19/0093/FUL 30/05/2019

Permitted 26/03/2020

Delegated Decision

147 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TT 

Installation of reinforcement steels and beams to existing floors 
stairs, reinstatement and/or replacement of decorative ceiling 
feature and new internal roof structures.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0094/LBC 30/05/2019

Permitted 26/03/2020

Delegated Decision

147 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TT 

Installation of reinforcement steels and beams to existing floors 
stairs, reinstatement and/or replacement of decorative ceiling 
feature and new internal roof structures.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/0129/FUL 07/03/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 20/03/2020

Delegated Decision

6 Matford Lane Exeter Devon EX2 4PS 

Demolition of existing bungalow and garage and construction of 
two storey dwelling and attached garage.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 85



19/0733/FUL 02/01/2020

Permitted 08/04/2020

Committee Decision

7-9 And 10 Blackboy Road Exeter EX4 6SG

Retention of the Sorry Head public house and demolition of the 
vehicle servicing centre for redevelopment with a four storey 
building comprising of a part ground floor retail unit (Class A1), 
purpose built student accommodation development (71 
bedspaces) above and associated private amenity space, secure 
cycle storage, bin storage and landscaping.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1698/FUL 02/01/2020

Permitted 18/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Grendon Road Exeter Devon EX1 2NJ 

Remodelling including internal alterations, demolition and 
rebuilding of rear extensions, new common room, and change of 
use from 24 to 22 almshouses

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1699/LBC 02/01/2020

Permitted 18/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Grendon Road Exeter Devon EX1 2NJ 

Remodelling including internal alterations, demolition and 
rebuilding of rear extensions, new common room, and change of 
use from 24 to 22 almshouses

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1786/FUL 23/01/2020

Permitted 26/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Dene End 43 Wonford Road Exeter Devon EX2 4UD 

Extension, replacement garage and other alterations.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0062/FUL 13/02/2020

Refuse Planning Permission 25/03/2020

Delegated Decision

7 Portland Street Exeter Devon EX1 2EG 

Replacement of existing conservatory with single storey extension. 
Formation of 2nd storey and 3rd floor extension to rear of property.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0145/LPD

Was lawful use 20/03/2020

Delegated Decision

17 Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4 7AD 

Rear single storey extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 86



20/0158/FUL 20/02/2020

Permitted 01/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Loma-Loma 83 Heavitree Road Exeter Devon EX1 2ND 

Rebuilding of boundary wall, with partial increase in height.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0195/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Waitrose 2 Gladstone Road Exeter Devon EX1 2EB 

Refurbish existing car park; reallocation of customer parking 
spaces for delivery vans, amended white lining and associated 
pedestrian route and reorientation of an external trolley shelter.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0240/CAT

Permitted 09/03/2020

Delegated Decision

The Maynard School Denmark Road Exeter Devon EX1 1SJ 

Lombardy Poplar (T16) Pollard to crown break at around 2.5m 
above ground levelLombardy Poplar (T17) Pollard to crown break 
at around 2m above ground levelLombardy Poplar (T18) Pollard to 
crown break at around 3m above ground level

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0271/CAT

Permitted 05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

50 Blackboy Road Exeter Devon EX4 6TB 

Quince tree, Crown thinning and reduction.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0272/CAT

Permitted 05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

51 Blackboy Road Exeter Devon EX4 6TB 

Sour Cherry Tree,  Crown reduction.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0276/TPO

Permitted 05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Penleonard Close Exeter Devon EX2 4NY 

Prune to reduce height and spread by 50%.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 87



20/0299/CAT

Permitted 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

15 Matford Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 4PW 

Pollard Lime 2 feet lower than current pollard points.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0358/ADV

Permitted 17/03/2020

Delegated Decision

15 Barnfield Road Exeter Devon EX1 1RR 

1 no. post and panel hand-painted timber sign (to replace existing 
signage)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0359/TPO

Permitted 06/04/2020

Delegated Decision

14 Leighdene Close Exeter Devon EX2 4PN 

Works to Mature Atlas Cedar to recover some light lost to recent 
growth.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Pennsylvania

19/1518/FUL 05/03/2020

Refuse Planning Permission 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

30 Thompson Road Exeter Devon EX1 2UB 

Construction of new dormer to west elevation.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0102/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 23/03/2020

Delegated Decision

23 Herbert Road Exeter Devon EX1 2UH 

Single/two storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0186/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

61 Sylvan Road Exeter Devon EX4 6EY 

Demolition of the existing extension along the East Facing 
Elevation to be replaced with a single storey extension to provide 
an open plan Kitchen/Dining/Living Room with Utility Space.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 88



20/0215/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Calthorpe Road Exeter Devon EX4 7JS 

New garage.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0318/TPO

Refuse Planning Permission 12/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Monterey Gardens Exeter Devon EX4 5EN 

T1, Monterey pine.  Remove upper and mid crowns.  Reduce 
remaining trunk to 3-3.5m final height.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Pinhoe

19/1788/FUL 05/03/2020

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

21 Bindon Road Exeter Devon EX4 9HN 

Front dormer window.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0018/FUL 20/02/2020

Refuse Planning Permission 17/03/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Venny Gardens Venny Bridge Exeter Devon EX4 8BH 

Roof alterations for loft conversion and Velux windows; conversion 
of garage to hallway and new front door arrangement.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0167/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

23 Causey Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3SH 

Removal of conservatory to side of property and replace with with 
timber clad, thermally efficient extension, constructed entirely in 
charred timber. Proposed extension to match the footprint and the 
roof profile of the existing conservatory. The proposal also includes 
for new double-glazed thermally-broken aluminium windows.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0168/LPD

Was lawful use 01/04/2020

Delegated Decision

23 Causey Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3SH 

Replacement of existing windows and rear garden door with new 
enlarged double-glazed thermally-broken slimline aluminium units; 
the insertion of 3no. new rooflights to the pitch of main house.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 89



20/0310/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 30/03/2020

Delegated Decision

3 Harringcourt Road Exeter Devon EX4 8PQ 

Single storey rear extension extending a maximum 3.375m from 
rear elevation, height to eaves 2.715m and max. overall height 3m.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0330/TPO

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Gipsy Hill Hotel Gipsy Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3RN 

Bay tree. Roots from the tree have damaged the drains by 
breaking into the drains beneath, which has enabled rodents to dig 
from the drain causing a public health issue. The closeness of the 
tree to the hotel can also lead to the roots causing subsidence in 
the future.  Work is required to fell the tree.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Priory

19/1636/FUL

Permitted 24/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon  

Temporary two year contractors parking and construction materials 
compound.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0016/FUL 20/02/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Countess Wear House 59 Countess Wear Road Exeter Devon EX2 
6LR 

Installation of roof-mounted solar panels.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0017/LBC 20/02/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Countess Wear House 59 Countess Wear Road Exeter Devon EX2 
6LR 

Installation of roof-mounted solar panels.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0027/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 10/03/2020

Delegated Decision

28 Well Oak Park Exeter Devon EX2 5BB 

Two storey rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 90



20/0058/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 01/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon  

Construction of Vacuum Insulated Evaporator (VIE) plant and 
hardstanding, Re-provision of car parking.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0060/FUL

Permitted 18/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon  

Installation of Air Handling Unit, together with associated ductwork 
and screening.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0169/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

138 Burnthouse Lane Exeter Devon EX2 6NB 

Rear ground floor extension with small front extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0181/FUL 05/03/2020

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

41 Tollards Road Exeter Devon EX2 6JJ 

First floor side extension over rebuilt garage and rear single storey 
extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0246/TPO

Refuse Planning Permission 09/03/2020

Delegated Decision

39 Veysey Close Exeter Devon EX2 6AS 

Fell a twin stemmed Sycamore Tree (T51) located close to the rear 
garden boundary of the application address.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Davids

19/1676/FUL 19/12/2019

Refuse Planning Permission 17/03/2020

Committee Decision

St Andrews Yard Willeys Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 8EP 

Demolition of existing single storey business premises and 
construction of 9no residential apartments along with on-site 
parking and associated landscaping.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 91



20/0095/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 12/03/2020

Delegated Decision

125 Fore Street St Davids Exeter Devon EX4 3JQ 

Change of use of basement from retail to tattoo studio

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0117/LBC 20/02/2020

Permitted 17/03/2020

Delegated Decision

46 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3DJ 

Remove ground floor partition wall to the retail/sales area.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0150/LBC 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

The Southgate Hotel Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1QF 

Installation of car park management system (ANPR system and 
associated signage).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0223/PDC

Prior Approval Required and 
Granted

07/04/2020

Delegated Decision

96 Fore Street St Davids Exeter Devon EX4 3HY 

Change of use from a shop (A1 use) to cafe (A3 use).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0227/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

The Southgate Hotel Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1QF 

Installation of car park management system (ANPR system and 
associated signage).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0228/ADV

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

The Southgate Hotel Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1QF 

Car Park Management Signage: 15 signs mounted on lighting 
columns, signage poles or on the wall of the buildings signage is of 
2 sizes, 800mm x 600 mm and 600mm x 600mm facing internally 
into the car park to advise of the car parks stay allocation as per 
the British Parking Association (BPA)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 92



20/0231/CAT

Permitted 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

7 Queens Terrace Exeter Devon EX4 4HR 

Yew T1 - Fell , because of the size it will reach and it's proximity to 
listed boundary wall. The roots are heaving the garden path and 
wall and  causing shading.We are also concerned about it's toxic 
properties on our pets. we would like to replant an insect friendly 
blossoming fruit tree.We think this tree is not a suitable tree for a 
garden the size of ours and believe it has grown from  a seed from 
one of the original  yew trees growing on the council grass area at 
the back of our property, the last owner of the property  didn't 
realise how large the tree would get.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0260/DIS

Condition(s) Fully 
Discharged

25/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Turks Head 202 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3EB 

Discharge of conditions 3 and 4 of 19/0804/LBC

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0273/CAT

Withdrawn by Applicant 16/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Georges Meeting House 38 South Street Exeter Devon EX1 1ED 

Removal of Silver Birch, to be replaced like for like with new tree.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0277/CAT

Permitted 05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

31 St Davids Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4DA 

Holm Oak, 30% crown reduction and 2-3m safety clearance off 
building(s).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0342/CATEX

Permitted 10/03/2020

Delegated Decision

3 St Leonards Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 4DL 

Removal of trees/bushes in rear garden.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 93



20/0344/CAT

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Princesshay Centre St Stephens House 9 Catherine Street Exeter 
Devon EX1 1EU 

T13-14-15 (Norway maple) reduce crown / shape to previous 
points.T11(Oak) Reduce crown by -  Branch tip reduction 2m clear 
of building.T21(Pear) pollard. T36-37-38-39-40-41-42 (London 
plane) Reduce crown by -  Specified extent Crown reduce to create 
2m clearance from building and lift to 5.2m over road

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0384/ADV

Permitted 30/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Unit 2 Ashmore Court 3 Haven Road Exeter Devon EX2 8BT 

Company signs above windows.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Loyes

19/1410/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 06/03/2020

Delegated Decision

40 Ringswell Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 3EF 

Single storey side extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0070/FUL 13/02/2020

Permitted 19/03/2020

Delegated Decision

3 Aller Vale Close Exeter Devon EX2 5NH 

First floor rear extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0093/ADV

Permitted 20/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Police Headquarters Devon And Cornwall Constabulary Police 
Training College Alderson Drive Exeter Devon EX2 7HQ 

2no. non illuminated Entrance signs.2no. 2.4m high internally 
illuminated totem signs.1no. 2.4m high internally illuminated 
directional sign.1no. 1.2m high internally illuminated directional 
sign.1no. 10m Flag pole

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 94



20/0220/NMA

Permitted 06/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Existing Garage Site Between Thornpark Rise And Birchy Barton 
Hill Exeter

Various minor changes to approved plans comprising changes to 
a) the site layout to accommodate retaining structures, b) revised 
fenestration sizes and c) replacement tree beside Unit 1. (Non-
Material Minor Amendment to planning permission reference 
18/0890/ECC granted on the 3rd October 2018).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0336/FUL 19/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

4 Bishops Way Exeter Devon EX2 7PF 

Proposed attic conversion to provide additional bedroom.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

St Thomas

18/0495/FUL 23/01/2020

Permitted 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

35 Church Road St Thomas Exeter Devon EX2 9AZ 

Construction of 2 no. dwellings with associated alterations and 
landscaping works (revisions to initial scheme publicised on 22 
June 2018)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1787/FUL 16/01/2020

Permitted 23/03/2020

Delegated Decision

136 Barley Farm Road Cowick Exeter Devon EX4 1NJ 

Two storey side extension

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0103/LED

Was lawful use 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Plymleigh Alphington Street Exeter Devon EX2 8AT 

Use of property with 8 bedsits

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0137/FUL 05/03/2020

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

29 Sydney Road Exeter Devon EX2 9AH 

Demolish and rebuild, to 1.1m height, wall between 29 Sydney 
Road and 4 Princes Street North.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 95



20/0151/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 03/04/2020

Delegated Decision

114 Regent Street Exeter Devon EX2 9EJ 

Single-storey rear extensions.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0213/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 07/04/2020

Delegated Decision

22 Nelson Road Exeter Devon EX4 1BG 

Single storey side extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0266/LED

Was lawful use 02/04/2020

Delegated Decision

11 Buddle Lane Exeter Devon EX4 1JU 

Lawful use of ground floor as takeaway (Class A5)

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0274/LPD

Was lawful use 02/04/2020

Delegated Decision

134 Wardrew Road Exeter Devon EX4 1EZ 

Hip-to-gable extension with side facing window, rear dormer, and 
roof lights to the front.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Topsham

19/1030/NMA

Permitted 09/04/2020

Delegated Decision

Seabrook Orchards Land North Of Topsham Road Bounded By 
The Former RNSD Site, Exeter Golf And Country Club, Newcourt 
Road, The M5 And Topsham Town AFC Ground)  Topsham Road  
Exeter  

Non-material amendment to condition 5 of planning approval 
11/1291/01 to introduce an additional alternative Masterplan plan 
drawing no. SKM002 (Non-material minor amendment to Planning 
Permission Reference No. 11/1291/01 granted on 15th October 
2013).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 96



19/1357/DIS

Condition(s) Fully 
Discharged

05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Phase 2 Seabrook Orchards (Formerly Land To North Of Topsham 
Town AFC Ground)  Topsham Road

Discharge of condition 34 (cycle parking) of application no. 
11/1291/01 (as modified by non-material amendments 14/2111/37 
and 14/1534/37) in so far as this condition relates to Phase 2 of the 
development (ref 18/1849/RES).

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1696/LBC 05/03/2020

Permitted 27/03/2020

Delegated Decision

87 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HQ 

External alterations to include: reroofing, replacement timber 
windows, roof construction infills and  internal alterations to 
include; insulation and replaster to some internal walls

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1717/FUL 19/12/2019

Permitted 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Sails Lofts Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HX 

Part replacement of external doors/windows, boiler flue, roof vents, 
entrance ramp, and balcony kerb

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1727/FUL 30/01/2020

Permitted 17/03/2020

Delegated Decision

74 High Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0DY 

Small front porch extension, rear kitchen dining living room 
extension with flat roof and lantern light.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

19/1728/LBC 13/02/2020

Permitted 11/03/2020

Delegated Decision

5 Clara Place Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0JR 

Construction of en-suite shower room within second floor bedroom.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0131/FUL 05/03/2020

Permitted 02/04/2020

Delegated Decision

1 Newcourt Way Exeter Devon EX2 7SA 

Construction of single storey rear extension and single storey side 
extension.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 97



20/0165/DIS

Condition(s) Partially 
Approved

05/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Land To The West Of Clyst Road  Topsham Exeter EX3 0DQ

Discharge of Condition 11 (Written Scheme of Archaeological 
Work) of application no. 17/1148/OUT.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0180/TPO

Permitted 25/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Newcourt House Old Rydon Lane Topsham Exeter Devon EX2 
7JU 

T1 - Sycamore - reduce edge of upper eastern canopy only by 
approx. 1m; also reduce length of 2x lower branches to east by 
1m, to reduce overhang back to the boundary. T2 - Sycamore - re-
pollard to previous pollard points. To reduce shading and mitigate 
against future failure at topping points.T3 Sycamore - reduce edge 
of upper eastern canopy only by 2-3m; reduce lower eastern 
branches by 1-2m, with the intention of reducing the eastern 
canopy edge back to the boundary line.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0191/PD

Prior Approval Not Required 24/03/2020

Delegated Decision

15 Higher Wear Road Exeter Devon EX2 7EL 

Single storey rear extension extending a maximum 3.3m from rear 
elevation, height to eaves 2.45m and maximum overall height 
3.5m.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0201/FUL 27/02/2020

Permitted 30/03/2020

Delegated Decision

541 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 7DL 

Infill car-port, porch, and cladding to front of property

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0235/FUL 12/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

23 Resolution Road Exeter Devon EX2 7FG 

Proposed conservatory.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Page 98



20/0242/NMA

Permitted 16/03/2020

Delegated Decision

Almernes Bridge Road Exeter Devon EX2 7AA 

Non-Material Amendment to Planning Permission Ref. 
18/1400/FUL (allowed on appeal 01 March 2019) to remove one 
juliet balcony and replace with a window.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0250/CAT

Permitted 01/04/2020

Delegated Decision

49 Victoria Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EU 

T1 Cypress: Fell.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0286/CAT

Permitted 01/04/2020

Delegated Decision

3 Coysh Square Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0JS 

Silver Birch (T1) removal of Eastern Limb.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0324/FUL 19/03/2020

Permitted 14/04/2020

Delegated Decision

13 Albatross Road Exeter Devon EX2 7SB 

Proposed rear extension and alterations.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

20/0348/CATEX

Permitted 12/03/2020

Delegated Decision

26 Parkfield Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0DR 

Fell Plum tree.

Application Number: Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type: Date:

Location Address:

Proposal:

Total Applications: 110

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  PLANNING COMMITTEE    
Date of Meeting: 27 April 2020 
Report of: Director 
Title: Appeals Report 
 
Is this a Key Decision? No 
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function?   No 
 

1. What is the report about? 
1.1 The report provides Members with information on latest decisions received and new appeals 

since the last report.   
  
2. Recommendation: 
2.1 Members are asked to note the report.   
  
3. 
 
 

Appeal Decisions Received: 
None 
 

4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
4.5 
 

New Appeals 
 
20/0018/FUL – 1 Venny Gardens, Venny Bridge, Exeter  
 
Roof alterations for loft conversion and Velux windows; conversion of garage to hallway and new 
front door arrangement.  
 
20/0076/TPO – 6 Truro Drive, Exeter 
 
Oak (T1) Removal of dead wood and crown reduction.  
 
ENF/19/00115 – Rosedale, 4 Newcombe Street, Exeter  
 
Construction of a dormer window on the rear elevation of the property. 
 
19/1742/FUL - 5 Friars Walk, Exeter 
 
Enlargement of existing porch and first floor bathroom. 
 
19/1743/LBC - 5 Friars Walk, Exeter 
 
Enlargement of existing porch and first floor bathroom. 
 

  
Bindu Arjoon  
Director 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling the report:  
Letters, application files and appeal documents referred to in report are available for inspection 
from:  City Development, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter 

 
Contact for enquiries: Democratic Services (Committees) - Room 2.3. Tel: 01392 265275 
 
 

  
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Planning Application No. 20/0194/ECC - The Night Shelter, Magdalen Street, Exeter
	20-0194-ECC Location Plan

	6 Planning Application No. 19/0962/FUL - Land off Pulling Road, Pinhoe
	19-0962-FUL Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	TD-A1



	7 Planning Application No. 19/1767/FUL - Quay Gardens, Monmouth Avenue, Topsham
	19-1767-FUL Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	19003.SLP - Site Location Plan



	8 Planning Application No. 20/0013/FUL - 37 Argyll Road, Exeter
	20-0013-FUL Location Plan

	9 List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
	Delegated Decisions 5 March - 16 April

	10 Appeals Report

